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l. Acronyms and Glossary ofTcnns

AGPO:

A-in-A

BE-IA:

CARB:

CCF:

CGS:

CSD:

DORB:

IPSAS:

IRMF:

KRA:

MCDAs:

MDAs:

MSME:

NIFC:

NHIF:

NSSF:

PFM:

PSSS:

RK-FINFA:

RTPs:

SACCOs:

SAGAs:

VFM:

Acccss to Governmsnt Procurement Opportunitics

Appropriations in Aid

Bottom-Up Economic Transformaion Agenda

County Allocatiou of Rwenue Bill

Climate Change Fund

Credit Guarantes Scheme

Ceatral Securities Depository

Dvision of Rcvenue Bill

Iaternational Public Scctor Accounting Standards (IPSAS)

krstitutional Risk Managernent Framework

Key Result Areas

Ministics, Cormtics, Deprtmcnts ard fucncics
M.ini stries, Deparments and Agencies

Micro, Small and Medirun Enterprises

Nairobi Intmational Financial Cmtre

National Hospital lnsuracc Frmd

National Social Security Fund

Public Finance Management

Public Savice Sup6x311l 'qti6e gcheme

Rrol Kcnya Finmcial Inclusion Facility

Restrictive Trade Practices

Saving and Credit Cooperative Organizations

$erni-dg1o1omsus Covemmenl Agacies

Valuc for Money
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2. THE NATIONAL TREASURY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT

a) Background lnformstio[
The National Treasury was established vide the Executive Order No. I of2023. The basis for
establishment of the National rreasury is found in Article 225 (l) ofthe constitution ofKenya
which states that an Act of Padiament shall provide for the establishment, fi.mctions 8nd
responsibilities ofthe National Treasury. This has been actualized in Section I I and 12 ofthe
Public Finance Management (PFM) Ad..z}lz.

At cabinet level, the National rreasury is represented by the cabinet secretary for National
Treasury and Economic Planning, who is responsible for the general policy and strategic
direction of the Ministry.

Vision
'Excellence in economic and public finance managernent, and development plaming for
Kenya's socio-economic transfonnation".

Mission
"To provide leadership in prudent economic and public frnance management and dwelopment
plqming tbrough formulatiorL implem€ntation and monitoring of policies for Kinya's
inclusive growth".

Core Values
The National Treasury is guided by the following STRICT core values
Stakeholder participation ;
Transparenry and accountability;
Results oriented;
Integrity;
Customer focus;
Teamwork and corrmitment;

Mandatc of thc National Treasury
The National Treasury derives its mandate from Article 225 ofthe constitution, public Finance
Management Act 2012 and the Executive order No.2 of2023. The National rreasury exercises
its msndate in consistenry with any other legislation as developed or reviewed by parturent
from time to time.

The core firnctions ofthe National Treasury as derived from the above legal provisions include;
i. Overall Economic Policy Management;
ii. Management of Public Finance;
iii. FormulationofNationalBudget;
iv. Public Detrt Management;
v. Forrmrlation srd Maintenance of Gov€rnment Accounting Sturdards;
vi. Bilateral and Multilateral Financial Relations;
vii. Capital Markets Policy;
yiii. Oversight ovcr Rcvcnue Collection;
ix. Compaition Poliry Management; National Pensions Poliqr Management;
x. Insurancc Policy and Regulation;
xi. Public Procurement and Disposal Poliry;
xii. Publio Investnent Policy and Oversight;

llt
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,oll.
xiv.

Development and Enforcement of Financial Govemance Standards;
Financial Sector Analysis and Management including SACCOs, NSSF and NHIF;
Financial Institutiols Ovsrsight;
Management of National and County Govemrnents Financial Management System
and Standards;
Development ofKenya as an International Finaacial Centre;
Anti-Money I-.aundering Policy;
Custodian ofNational Government Assets and Properties; and
Secrctariat to Intergovemmental Budget and Economic Council.

xv

xvll.
xviii.

xix.

xvt.

vll

xx-

Role of the National Treasury in the Devolved System of Govemment

The National Treasury is mandated by law to: -
i. saengthen financial qrd fiscal relations between the National Government and county

Governments and support for county govemments in performing thet functions;
ii. Issue guidelines on the preparation ofcounty development planning;

iii. Prepare the arurual legislative proposals on intergovernrnental Iiscal transfers;

Provide logistical support to int€f,governmental institutions
intergo vemmen tal fiscal relations;

overseelng

vl

Coordinate the development and implementation offinancial recovery plurs for County
Govemments that are in financial distress;

Build capacity of County Govemments on public finance management matters for
efficienq effective and transparent linancial management as well as plurning
monitoring and evaluation; and

Administer dle Equalization Fund.

(b) Key Management

The National Treasury's day-to-day management is bestowed on following key o{fices.

Olficc of the Principal Secretary
The Principal secretary is resporsible for the day-to-day administration of the National
Treasury operations and is the Accounting officer aad Authorized olEcer. In addition, the
Principal Secretary is charged with the responsibility of advising the cabinet Secretary on
poliry, technical and administrative functions in the National Treasury.

Orgenirellongl 5tructure of the National Treasury

The National rreasury is orgarized into five (5) technical Directorates headed by Directors
General and one (1) Administrative and support services Dfuectorate headed by a principal
I'dminis6gnivs $scretary. Each Director General is responsible for a Directorate comprising a
cluster of Depaftnents responsible for related policy firnctions. In addition, ttre ivatioial
Treasury has two independent departrnents narnety public procurement and tntemal Auditor
General' headed by Directors and a Public Finance Management secretariat headed by a
Programme Coordinator. The Drectorates and Departments are as follows:

IV
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Directorate ofBudget, Fiscal and Ecotromic Atfairs
The Directorate is headed by a Director Gsneral, reporting to the principal Secretary, National
Treasury. It is organized into the following four (4) Technical Departments each headed by a
Director:
(a) Budget Deparbnent;
(b) Macro and F.iscal Alfairs Department;
(c) Financial and Sectoral Affaks Departnent; and
(d) Inter-Covemmental Fiscal Relations Departrnent.

Directorate ofAccounting Services and euelity Assurance
The Directorate is headed by a Director ceneral reporting to the principal secretary, National
Treasry It is organized into the following four (z+) Technical Departnents each headed by a
Director:
(a) Government Accounting Sewices;
(b) Infomration Financial Maaagement Systems (IFMIS);
(c) National Sub-County Treasuries; and
(d) Government Dgital Payments Unit.

Directorate of Public Investment and Portfolio Management
The Directorate is headed by a Director General, reporting to the principal secretary. It is
organized into the following five (5) Technical Departrnents each headed by a DLector:
(a) Government Investrnent and Public Enterprises;
@) National Assets and Liabilities Managementi
(c) Parastatal Reforms:
(d) Pensions DepaEnent; ard
(e) Public Investnent Maragement.

Directorate of Public Debt Management Office
Thc Directorate is headed by a Director General, reporting to the principal secretary. It is
organized into the following three (3) Technical Depatnens each headed by a Director:
(a) Resource Mobilization (Front Office);
(b) Debt Policy, Strategy and Risk Management (Middle Office);
(c) Debt Recording and Settlement (Back OI[ce).

Directorate of Public Private Partnership
The Dtectqate is heeded by a Director Gen€ral, reporting to the kincipal Secretary on matters
relating to Public Private Partnership.

Directorate of Administrative and Support Scrvices (Common Shared Services)
The Drc*orate is headed by a Principal Administrative Secretary, reporting to the principal
secr€tary- Itis organizcd into ten (t0) specialized funaions offering common sharcd services.
The connnon shred services ofthe National rreasury consis of fimctions that are not core to
the National rreasury but offer critical support services to the National rreasury. The fiuctions
include:
(a) Accounting;
(b) Finance;
(c) Human Resourc€ Management and Development;
(d) Central Planning and Project Monitoring;
(e) Supply Chain Management;
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(0 Leeal;
(g) Public Communications;
(h) Gmeral Administration;
(i) Intemal Audit: and
0) rcr.

(c ) Flduciary MoDagement

The key managerneot personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30th June 2024
and who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

S/1.[o. Des nation Name
I Princi S Dr. Ch-ris Kiptoo, CBS
2. Administrative S Mr. Samson Wangust, OGW
J Director G BFEA Mr. Albert Mwend4 HSC
4 Director General Accoun Services Mr. Bemffd N 'u, MBS
5 Director General, PIPM Mr. Lawrence Kibet

6 Director Geaeral, PDMO Dr. Haron Sirm4 EBS
7 Director General, PPP Mr. Chri her oGw
8 Direclor Macro and Fiscal Aftirs Deprtment Mr. Musa Kaftaqie
9 Bu arfrnent Mr. Francis 4 ocw
t0 Director Financial and Sectoral Affairs Departsnent Mr. Ronald Inyangara
ll. Director Public Procurement Mr. Eric Korir
12 Directo{, htergovernmental Fiscal Relations Deparhnent Mr. Samuel Kiptorus
13. lntemal Auditor General Ms. Jane Micheni
t4 Director Government Accoun Services Mr. Jona Wala
15. Director, National Sub County Treasuries Mr. Francis Kariuki oGw
16 Ag. Director, Integrated Financial Management

Information S
Mr. Mboni Kyallo

17. Natioml Assets 8nd Liabili Mr. Malombc
18. Director Govcrnmsnt Invcshncnt and Public Entca:priscs Mr. Kcnnedy Ondicki
19 Director, Pensions D t J\4r. Ir,Iichael Kagik4 EBS
20 Drector, Parastalal Reforms Dr. Karen Kandie DBA
2I Director, Public Investment ement Unit Mr. Jonah Ourumoi
22 Ag. Director , Resource Mobi lization Department Mr. David Komen
23 Director, Debt Policy, Straregy and Risk Management

t
Mr. Dmiel Ndolo

24 D Debt and Settlement Mr- Geor Kariuki
25 Director Administration Mr- Eli ahS 'on
26. Director Accounts Division Mr. George K. Gichuru
27- Finance Unit Mr. Ambrose Ogalgo
28 Senior SCMU Mr. Caleb Ogot
29. lntemal Auditor Genera l/Hcad, Intemal Audit Unit Ms. tu M
30. Prirci State Counse Unit Ms. Faith Pesa
3l D Human Resource t 8nd Develo t Mr. Benson Giudura
32. Director Information Cornmunicarion and Technol Ms. Lym Nyongesa
?3. Drector, Central Planning and Project Monitorirg Mr. John Olela

34. Public Communicati ons Unit Jvlr. Godfrey Isiya

vl
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35 Programme Coordinator, Public Financial Management
Reform Secretariat

Mr- Joel Bett

(d) Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements
To manage the fiduciary risk, the National Treasury has put in place fiduciary oversight
arrangements including setting up cornrnittees. The key oversight arrangements include:

i, Audit Committees
In line with the Public Finance Managernent Act, the National Treasury has established a
Ministerial Audit Committee comprising five members, three of whom are independent. The
Committee provides overall oversight and quality assurance including follow up on the
effectiveness of implementation of audit recommendations.

Further, the National Treazury established an audit committee comprising of officers from all
departments ofthe Ministry, under the chairmarship ofthe Senior ChiefFinance OfEcer. The
Committee reviews and analyses all audit queries and makes recommendations on how to
reduce fiduciary risks. In addition, the committee prepares responses to all audit queries for
presentation to the relevalt committees ofparliarnent.

Public Finance Managcment Committeest.

Budget Implementation Steering Committee

In order to effectively monitor the implementation of the National Govemment budget
implemenlation, tle National Treasury has established a steering Committee chaired by the
cabinet secretary, National rreasury and Economic Planning. The Principal secretaries for the
National Treasury and State Departsnent for Economic Planning provide general oversight in
the Budget implementation.

Budget Implementation Technical Commitaee

The Cornrnittee is chaired by the Principal Administrative Secretary and comprises the
Dfuectors General and various Heads of Department. The Commiftee is responsible for
monitoring the actual implementation ofthe identified measures and programmes and reporting
detailed progress on the same regularly.

Budget Implementation Ministerial Committee
To monitor the impletnentation of the Ministry's budget, programmes and activities, the
National Treasury has appointed a committee comprising of olEcers from all the Deparhents
ofthe Ministry. The committee reviews and analyses the progress made by Deparbnents in the
implementation of budget and the planned prograrnmes and activities and advises the
managcmat accordingl y.

ii. Top Management Committee
To monitor the implementation of the Ministry's programmes and performance, the National
Treasury has appointed Senior Management Committe€ comprising of Dtectors General. The
Committee receives reports from departments, build consensus on National Treasury responses
to cmerging issues, challenges and risks ard ensues that the decisions made are implemented
in a timely manner. Additionatly, the Treasury constituted Ad hoc Committees to handle
specific assignments in the Finurcial Year 2023t24.

YU
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iii. Other ovcrsight activities
Other fidrciary oversiglrt arrangements include the following cornmittees with specific
objectives:-

Project Implementation Committee

To monitor the implementation of the Governrnent's Infi.astnrcture projects, the National
Treasu'y has established a Project Steering Committee comprising principal Secretaries frorn
implementing Ministries and appointed a technical committee comprising o{Ecers from the
technical departments of the Ministry. The Committees review and analyse the progress made
by ministries in the implementation of domestically and extemally funded projects and advises
accordingly.

Parllamentary Activities

In order to effectively rnanage the padiamentary activities relating to the Ministry, the National
Treasury has established a committee and designated a liaison omcer to coordinate the
activities under the Office ofthe Cabinet Secretary.

Development Partner Oversight

To effectively manage OIlicial Development Assistance to the Government, the National
Treasury has, under the Public Debt Management, a departnent responsible for all matters
relatiDg to Development Partners. The Department has various Units that coordinate different
development partner activities in the Comtry.

Public Financial Management Sector Working Group

To facilitate the implementation of financial management reforms, the National rreasury has
appointed senior officers to the Public Financial Management Sector Working Group. The
cornmittee plays an oversight role in the implementation of financial reforms in the public
service in collaboration with the development parhers.

The National Tressury Monitoring and Evaluation Technical Commitaee (NTPMEC)

The Natioaal Treasury undertakes monitoring and evaluation exercises to establish progress
made in the implementation of various prograrnmes and projects including those thai are
firnded by the development partners.

Tte Ndimal Treasury Monitoring and Evaluation Technical Committee (NTpMEC) is a
dedicated technical committee which was established by pSAIT on 2gth May, 2024 to
mainstr€am PM&E practices within the National rreasury and ensure effective oversight and
evaluation offiscal policies, budgetary allocations, and public investrnents. The commiftee is
mandated to enhance tle efficiency, transparency, and accountability of the planaing,
budgeting financial managernent, and M&E practices u/ithin the National rreasury. it aims io
provide systematic oversigh! evaluation, and evidence-based recornmendations for firactional
md operational efficiency and realization ofintended stategic outcomes.

v[t
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The Nationcl Trersury Herdquarters
P.O. Box 30007- 00100,
Treasry Builrlin&
Harambee, Avenue
NAIROBI, KENYA

The Nrtional Trcasury Contscts
Telephone: (2 54)0 20 -2252299
F n"il: Cornrnunication@treasury.qo.ke
Website: www.keasury.co.ke

The Netional Treasury Bankers
Central Buk of Kurya
tlaile Sclsssie Av€nue
P.O. Box 60000
City Squarc 00200
NAIROBI,KENYA

Indcpcndcnt Auditors
Auditor Generd
Office of the Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, University Way
P.O Box 30084
GPO00100
NAJNOBI,KENYA

Principal Lcgal Adviser
Thc Attorney General
Statc l,aw Office
Harambee Avcoue
P.O. Boxt()l12
City Squarc 00200
NAIROBI, KEIYYA

ll) Jurr. -'" I I
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3. STATEMENT OF GO}'ERNANCE

i. BriefofKeyLeadershipStructure
The National Treasury and Economic Planning is divided into trvo entities: The National
Treasury and State Departrnent for Economic Planning. It is represented by the Cabinet
Secretary who is responsible for the general policy and snategic direction ofthe Ministry.

At the top rnanagement level, the National Treasury is headed by the Principal Secretary who
is the accounting officer and is responsible to the Cabinet Secretary in tie performance ofhis
duties. The National Treasury has six Directorates headed by Directors General and a Principal
Administrative Secretary who is responsible for Administration and Support Services.

The Nrtional Treasury Leadership Structure

ii. ManagCment Conimittces Established and Their Roles
The National Treasury hss appointed m.mageme s committees to monitor the irnpternentation
ofprogrammes" prqiects and report on their performance. They include:

Top Managemmt Committee
Top Management Cornmittee comprises of Cabinet Secreta.ry, Principal Secrctary and
Directors General. The Committee receives reports from departments, build consensus on
National Treasury responses to emerging issues, challenges and risks and €nsures th&t tle
decisiors made are implemented in a timely manner.

x



iii. Thc Audit Committee
Iu line with the Public Finance Management Act, the National Treasury has established a
Ministerial Audit Committee comprising of the Chairperson and four members, of which tlree
are independent. The members were appointed or l5b December,2022.

The Conmiuee provides overall oversight and quality assurance including fol.low up on the
effectiveness ofimplernentation ofaudit reconuneudations. The Cotunittee is active and meets
on a quarrcrly basis to deliberate on their firnctions.

iv. Risk Management, complirnce, conllict of interest
The National Treasury appointed risk champions who have been trained. The processes of
developing a risk management framework have commenced.

v, Recent Trainings and development in governance for those in key leadership
The National Treasury supported those in key leadership positions to attend leadership and
shategic management courses at the Kenya school of Govemment and other reputable
intemational institutions.

vi. Publicparticipationactivities
The National Treasury underscores the imporlance for public participation as provided for under the
Constitntion of Kenya and Public Finance Management (PFM Act ZOl2 by giving Kenyans
opportunities to intenogate proposed arnendments to the PFM Act, 2012 and make submissions on their
views for consideration in poJicy makrng and jmplementation so as to streDgtbeD and deepeo good
goverDance. The Ndional Treasury carried out Public Sector Hearings for the Proposed Budget for the
FY ZOnnS and ttrc medium term by holding both physical meaings and virtual hearings. In addition,
it carried out five (5) public participations in all regions in the country on the proposed Privatization
B l, 2023. The National Treasury provided an opportunity to all Kenyans across the country to
intenogate the Public Finance Management Act 2Ol2 Amendments that aimed at aligning the debt
anchor to intemational best practices.

vii. C-ompliancewith laws nnd regulations
The National Treasury complies with the Constitution ofKeny4 all applicable laws and regulations in
line with acceptable national and intemational standards as well as its intemal policies.

ln order to enhance compliance to existing legislatiors and regulations, the National Treasury, tkough
the L,€gal Unit has lined up a series ofinterventions to be progressively implemented. To begin with, in
the FY 2023/24, the National Treasury being a data recipient and a data cqrholler, initiated efforts to
ensure compliance to the Data Protection Act 2019 and the right to privacy as per Article 3l of the
Constihrtion. The effort entailed undertaking a precursor training on dala protection for auditees. The
training benelited thirty-six (36) the National Treasury staff as part of the steps for
comprehersive legal and regulatory compliance audit.

The next step will involve rmdertaking legal and regulatory compliance ofthe Public Finance
Managsm€nt End Regulations in the FY 2024/25 and thereafter compliance audit.

xl
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{. STATEMENT BY THE CABINET SECRETARY

In accadmcc with Scdion 12 of the Public Fiamce Managctnent Ast, 2OL2, thc Nuional
Troasury is rcsponsible for coordinating tho cormty's ooonomic 6ad ffnensial mrnagcmert.
OvcraII, tho National Troasury has coatinued to maintsin I policy onvironmont that is
con&rcivc to ccooomic growth and davolopmcot oftho country.

Thc FY 2023t?.4 mroJ*d tho second yec fotlowing the tramitim from thc pwious
srllninis6sli66 to tic currcnt oc. The FY 2023D4 ms rneniftsted b[, accolodcd
implcmoatation of programmos. However, rcvenue performano€ into ttc year fcll short of
tsrgot rosultitrg i[ deploymcnt ofaustcrity mcasuros md rcprioritizations of activitics.

f,,couodc Grortt

The cconomy grcw by 5.6 perccrlt itr 2023 up from 4.9 pcrcent b,2OZZ, a demonsration of
rcsilicnco and &c beginniag of ccoomic rccovory. The growtt in 2023 is abovo tha prc-
pandcoaic avorago of4.7 percent per year fu the pcr.iod bctweeo 20ll-2019. Thc growth was
largclydriven by a stong rebound in the qgricultural subscctor, which bcncfircd fiom favorablc
w€sit€f, cmditions aftcr two yrars of scvere droqhts and ftc robust performancc of dre
serviccs sector. Howcvcr, rnmu&cturiag md wholcsalc md rctail tsadc srbscctors slowed
do*l-

This growth momartum has coatinuod in 2024 with thc cconomy o:panding by 5.0 p€rc.or in
lhc fr* qrar mparcd b I growtt of 5.5 perccnt in thc coccspooding qurtlr h ZOZ:
(Clrrt D. Ito growth is largely drivco b[, sEmg growft itr agricdtrc srppqtcd by &nmble
woathcr corditions md govcrunent intco:rrcntions. Additionally, s€rvicca scclor rcmainod
rqsili@t wi& real ostatc, finencial & insurancc, ICT and accommoddion & food serviccs
supPortiry &c growth.

ChrtI: Reel GDP Growft Rttli

Sourcc of l}tte: I(mye Nadonrl Burcau of Strtisdcs
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The primary sector grew by 5.0 percent in the first quarter of 2024 compared to a grcwth of
5-3 pcrcent in the first cru.afier of 2023. This was as a result of the robust gro*'th in the
agriculture, forestry and fishing s,ub-sector despite a contraction in the minfurg and quarrying
sub sector. Activities in the agriculture, forestry and fishing sub-sector expanded by 6.1 percent
in the fust quafter of 2024 compued to a gowth of 6.4 percent in a simrlar quarter in
2023(Table 1). The perfonnance of the sector was attributed to favorable weather conditions
as well as govemment interyentions that Ied to enhar6sd production. The performance was
evident in the sigrificant increase in production oftea, milk and sugarcane during the quarter
under review. However, the sector's performance rvas somewhat curtailed by decline in exports
ofcoffee, fruit and cut flowers.

Mining and quarrying sub-sector contracted by 14.8 percent in the frst quarter of 2024
comparcd to a contraction of 1l-0 percent ovs the same period in 2023. This was due to a
decline in production ofmost minerals such as titfrriun, soda Ash and ganstone.

Industrial sector performance remained suMued, with growth of the sector slowing down to
l.l percent in the first quarter of2024 fiom a growth of2.5 percent in a similar quarter of2023.
This was mainly on account ofa decline in activities in all its sub-sectors i.e. the manufacturing,
electicity& water supply and construction subsectors.

Manufecturing sub-sector expanded by 1.3 percent in the fust quarter of2024 compared to
1.7 percent growth in the conesponding quater of2023. In the manufacture offood products,
growth was supported by tea and dairy processing despite the decline in soft drink production.
ln the manufacture of non-food products, cement production declined. Electricity and water
supply sub-sector also recorded a decelerated growth of2.4 percent in the first quarta of2024
compored to a growth of3.7 percent in the corresponding quarter of2023. The s€ctor's growth
was supported by an increase in hydroelectric power generatio and a decrease in thermal
power generation.

Activities in the construction sub-sector registered a decelerated grorth of0.l perccnt, down
from the 3.0 percent growth recorded in the first quarter of2023. The slowdoEn was reflected
in the decline in the volume of cernent consnnption and imported bitumen. However, the
volume ofiron and steel imported increased during the review period.

The activities ir the services sector continued to sustain shong growth momentum in the first
quartcr of2024 and grew by 6.2 percent comparEd to a growth of6-5 percent in a similar period
in 2023- The performance was largely characterized by significant growths in: accornmodation
and food service; financial and insurance; information and communication; real estate and
wholesale and retail trade sub-sectors. Accommodation and food service activities sustained
the growth momentum that started n the 2022 recovery fiom the effects of COVID-I9
pandemic even though this gro*th was slower compared to the corespondhg quarter of2023.
The sub.sector grew by 28.0 percent compared to a growth of47.l percent recorded in the fust
quaner of2023. The growth was widenced by a significsnt increase in the nunber ofvisitor
arrivals tkough the two major airports, the Jomo Kenyatta International Airport (JKIA) and
Mombasa Intemational Airport (MIA).

Financial end insurance sub-sector sector grew by 7.0 percent in the frst quarter of2024
compared to 5.9 percent in the corresponding quarter of 2023 while information and
conrmunication s'ubseclor grew by 7.8 percent compared to a growth of 9.5 perccn! over the
same period. Growth in d]e infonnation and communication sub-sector was supponed by

xlll



t'- ni,l rr:l l J:il,;\ : i , , ) I , , . , , , , : I l

. i ,, (),,i.',r i :rjl].l, L :.!, r. i t:r)ri

increased voice traffic, intemet use and mobile money despite a decline h the use of domestic
Short Messaging Services (SMSs).

Activities in Transportation and Storage sub-sector slowed down to a growth of3.8 percent
in the fnst quarter of 2024 compared to a growth of 6.6 percent in a corresponding period in
2023. The growth in the sector was mainly supported by increased activities in Mombasa Port
tbroughout and an increese in the nrrrnfuq' 6ll1Lrrational passenger arrivals and departures.
Howelcr, Browth ir the sector was curtailed by a decline in the number of passangers
b?nsported via Standard Gauge Raihvay (SGR). Consumption oflight diesel which is a key
input to land transportation also declined during the period.

Table l: Sectoral Real GDP Growth rate (Percent)

Source ofData: Kcnya National Bureau of Statistics

The Govemment undertook reprioritization and cost-cutting measures to ensure smooth
imltlementation of priority prog:o--es for the remainder of the linancial year.

In the FY 2023124, the fiscal balance (on commitment basis and excluding grants) amounted
to KSh.952.9 billion (5.9 percent ofGDP) against a targeted deficit ofKSh. 963.5 billion (6.0
percenr ofGDP)- The fiscal balance (on a commitnent basis and itrcluding gents) stood at 5.8
percent ofGDP against a target deficit of 5.7 p€rcetrt ofcDp.

Total rcvenue collection by the end of June 2024, amounted to KSh . 2,702.7 billton, against a
taryet ofKSh. 2,907.5 billion. The revsnue was below target by KSh. 204.9 billion on account

AIEual Croltth Rates Quartely Grorrth
Sectors

2022 2023 2023 Ql 2021 Qt
1. Prlmary Industry

1. l. Africr true, Forestry atrd FisLiog
1.2 Miuiog and Quanyiug

2. Secondary Scctor (fndustry)
2.1. Maaufacturiug
2-2. Elecrricity and Water supply
2.3. Coustntctiou

3. Tertlary sector (Sen'ices)
3-1. Wholesale a:ed Retail trade
3-2- AccoEodatiotr a|ld Restaur-a-ot
3.3. Tralsport aud Stora-lre
3.4. Ilfonuatiou and Corurururication
3.5. Fiuaqciat ald Ilsnralce
3.6- Public Admnristratiou
3.7- Otlrers

ofwlich: Professioual, Adrrril &
Suppon Serwices

Real Estate
Educatior1
Healdr

Taxes less subsidies
Rc.l GDP

(o.8)
(l.s)
9.3
3.5
2.6
5.5
4.r
6.6
3.5

26.4
5.8
9.0
l2.o
-5.1
5.3

9.4

4.5
5.2
3.4
6-7
49

5.6
6.5
(6.-s)
2.5
2.O
2.8
3.0
6.8

3 3.6
6.2
9.3
IO.l
4.6
6.t

9.4

7.3
3.1
4.9
2.2
5.6

53
6.4

(rr.o)
2-5
1.7
3.7
3.O

6.5
2.9

47.1
6_6

9.5
5.9
7.6
s.7

8.6

7.3
2.O
5.1
3.O
s-5

5.0
6.t

(r4.8)
1.t
1.3
2.4
o.1
6.2
4.9
24.0
3.8
7.4
7-O

5.8
5.9

9.9

6-6
4.0
5.5
4.7
5.0
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ofshotfalls recorded in both ordinary revenue and ministerial A-I-A. Total revenue i.oclusive
of the ministerial A-I-A grew by 14.5 percent, an increase from a growth of 7.3 percent

ryar!{ in JuneZ023. Ordinary revenue collection was KSh.2,288.9 billion against a targer of
KSh.2,576.8 billion, KSh.287.8 billion below the target.

J[e mini5tslial A-I-A collected was below target by KSh.57.l billion during the period under
review. Ttre underperformalce of A-I-A was mainly due to underreporting of SAGAs' A.I.A
ttuough the Ministerial expenditure returns for the period under review. The Railway
Development kvy mlleaion amounted to KSh.66.l billion against a target of KSh.66.5
bitlion.

The total expenditure and net lending for the period under review arnounted to KSh.3,655.6
billioq against a rarget of Ksh.3B7l.5 billion. The resultalt under expenditure ofKSh.2l5.5
billion is attributed to lower absorption recorded in recurrent and development €xp€nditures by
the National Govemment and below target equitable share transfers to the County
Governments. Recurrent expenditure for National Government amounted to KSh.2,644.e
billion (excluding KSh. 59.7 billion for Parliament and Judiciary) against a target of
KSh.2,716.9 billion leading to a below target ex?enditue ofKSh.72.7 billion. The below-target
expe.nditure in recurrent category is mainly attributed to below target expenditure on operation
and Mainteuance (O&M) md pension p4/rnents.

The wcrall year-on year inflation is under control and within the Govemment target rsngc of
5+2.5 percent. lnflation declined to 4.6 percent in Jane 2024 from 7.9 percent in June 2023,
due to. easing offood and orergy prices (Ctart 2). The appreciating Shilling produced a strong
pass-through effect of lowering domestic prices supported by a tight monetary policy stance.
Additionally, interventions by Government in providing subsidized fertilizir and seeds
continue to lower the cost of food production, and revitalize agriculnral production.

Inllstion

Chart 2: Inflation Development
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f'.rr'honge Rates
The Kcnya Shilling exchange rate has stabilized against major intemational currercies. By end
June 2024, the exchange rate agaiast the US dollar was KSh.l29.4 cornpared to KSh.l60.8 by
end January 2024, an appreciation of 19.0 percent. Against the Euro, the Kenya shitting also
strengthened by 20.1 percent to exchange at KSh.l39.3 by end June 2024 compared to
KSh.l74.3 by end January 2024 while against the Sterling Pound the Kenyan Shilling
strengthened by 18.9 percent to exchange st KSh.l64.5 compared to KSh.202.9, over the same
period (0rart 4a).

Through the repayment of the 2024 Eurobond, the Government successfully removed the
investor uncertainty snd market perc€ption improved significantly. The appreciation and
stability of the exchange rate has created confidence and triggered inflows of foreign direct
inves{mcot and attracted investors to the Nairobi securities Exchange- This appreciation has
helpod to reduce debt service costs, improve performance ofdomestic borrowing and stabilize
interest rates.

I ir,, i.i.rt:'rr.rl l'rcar,rr.r i: fi,,ri,:,rirr: i.l1lr)irj
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Chart 3: Short-Term Interest Rates
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Chart 4a: Kenya Shitling Exchange Rate
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In comparison to Sub-Saharan Africa currencies, the volatility ofthe Kenya Shilling exchange
rate has renrained relatively low amid high demand for the US dollar in the international
markets. The Kenya Shilling strengthened against the US Dollar at a rate of 7.4 perc€nt in the
12 months to Jrne2024 compared to depreciations of 19.l percent in the 12 months toJune
2023 (Chart 4(b). The stability ofthe Kenyan Shilling was supported by resilient remittances,
adequate foreign exchange resewes and sfong exports receipts. Majority ofother Sub-Saharan
Africa Currencies depreciated during the same period, particulady: Rwanda Irang Ghanaian
Cedi, Zarnbian Kwacha and Malawian Kwacha had double{igit depreciation rates (chert 4b).

Chart 4b: Performance of Selected Sub-saharan Countries Currencies against the US
Dollar (June 2023 to June 2024)

Sourc€ ofDrta: Nrlionll C.ntrrl Btnl(t

Pending Bills

The total outstanding national govemment pending bills as at 30fr June, 2024 amounted to
KSh.516.3 billion. These comprise ofKSh.379.8 billion (73.6 percent) and KSh.136.5 billion
(26.4 percent) for the State Corporations (SCs) and Minishies/State Departsnentvother
govemment entities respectively. The SCs pending bills include payment to
contractors/projects, supplierq unrernifted statutory and other deductions, pension arrears for
local Aurhorities Pcnsiot Trusg and others. The highest percentage ofthe scs pcnding bills
(71.5 percent) belong to Conhactor/Development Projects and Suppliers. MinisrieVstate
Deparhnents and other government entities pending bills constihrtes mainly of the historical
ones-

The National Goverument policy on clearurce of pending bills continues to be in force. The
National rreastry is currently developing a comprehensive strategy to clear outstanding stock
gfyerified pending bills of the National Goverrunent over the rnedium tenn. In this st-at€gy,
deficiencies and lapses that led to accumulation ofpending bills will be addressed. This is being
undertaken through the Pending Bills verification committee Gazetted in September 2023. In
theFY 2024n5 ail MDAs are expected to clear all the expenditure carDrovers from Fy 2023124
as a first charge before payment ofcomrnitments in the current financial year.
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Bottom-Up F,conomic Transformation Agend, (BETA)

MDAs will continue to be required to pnoritize allocations towards the achiwement of the
BETA priorities while addressing the poliry, legal, regulatory and governanc.e issues as a
rnattcr ofpriority to ensure optimal use ofresourcos in execution ofthe planned intervcntions.
BETA is gearcd towards €conomic tum arormd and inclusive growth atrd aims to itroease
investneots ia at Ieast five secto$ with high potential impact on the ecoaomy as wcll as
houschold welfare.

These include: -
i. AgriculturalTransformation;
ii. Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise (MSME);
iii. Ilousing and Seltlement;
iv. Health care: and
v. Dgital superfiighway and Creative Industry.

Fiscal policy for fJyr 2024/2025 and the medium-tcmr budget aims to support the Bottom-Up
Economic Transformation Agenda (BETA) through a growth friendly fiscal consolidation
plan Thc consolidarion will be supported by cnhanced rwenue mobilization, rationalization
and pioritization ofexpendihrc while protectirg essential social and der€loFn€nt budget. As
part of the process, the Government has €mbarkcd on the implcrnentation ofthe National ra*
Policy and the Medium-Term Rwenue Skategy (MTRS) that will firther strengthcn tax
revenue mobi.lization efforts over the medium ternl

Sigraturc I)rtc .., .t 0
HON. CPA JO H
CABINET SECRETARY
TI{N NATIONAI, TREASTJRY AND ECONOMTC PLANMNG
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5. STATEMENT BY TIIE PRINCIPAL SECRETARY

Budgtt performance
The Natioral rreasury expenditure for the FY 2023/24 stood at KSh.86.7 billion against an
approved budget ofKSh.108.7 billion trsnslating to an overall absorption rate of79.76 percent
as demonstrated in the pie chart below. This translates to an improvement of 10.33 percent
from 69.43 630/o rs.arded ia the Iinancial yetrlr 2022123. Chart 2 bclow prese4r( ihe N&ional
Treasury total budget exeqrtion for the FY 2023D4.

Chart 2: Total Allocation against Total Expenditure (KSh. Billions)

Total budget outturn- FY 2023/24

79.76%

.2O23t24 Agpror'.d Bttd$.t. .2023/24 Expcndlture 2023f24 % Absorpflon

Chart 3: Nntionrl 'l'reasury recurrent budget execution for the f'y 2023/24 (KSh.
Billions)

Recurent budget outturn- FY 2023124

92.7@6

. 202324 Appror.d 8u*.t . 202324 Ee.odttu.! . 202324 
'{ 

Ab.orpdon

when disaggregated by recurrent and development expendihre, the budget execution indicates
that rcorrreot erpeoditure stood at KSh.57.38 billion in the FY 2023/24 qggin5l an allocation
ofKSh. 6I.90 billion translating to 92.70 % absorption rate as shown in Chart: below. This
was aa inprovernent from the absorption rate of78.05 recorded jnFy 2O2UZ3.
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On the other hand, development exp€nditue absorption was KSh .29.32 bilhon against an

allocation ofKSh 116.80 billion recording ar absorption rate of62.65zo as illustratcd in chsrt
4 below. The under absorption in development expenditure is attributed to exchequer

challenges.

[]irart .ll P,.t-,rnt,i t]rc r\rrriu,,:ri -[ r.ortsury rlsicltlrmcnr brrrigct trttrrrilr: t,-r. tirr li i-
2{)l3i2,l ( l(Sh. l}illions)

Development budget outturn - Fy 2023/24

62.65%

. 2023/24 Approv.d B'.ldt!t . 2023/24 Expcndtture 2O23p4 % Absoryflon

Budget cxecution for externally funded resources for Fy 2023D024

The enternally funded projects recorded an absorption of KSh. 22.38 billion against an

allocstion ofKSh. 31.99 billion translating to an absorption rste of69.96 per cent. This is a
rnqrkcd iry'oygm qt frolrt the 2924%q r*orded in 2022D3. The irtgrovementis attributcd to

incrcascd cornmitnents by donors. However, differences in accounting pcriods betwecn GoK
and Donor continues to affect appropriare recording of absorption since budget outh[n are

characterised by reporting lags where expenditures may have occurred at the delivery source

but not captured in the reporting system in real time as app.ropriate.

chart 6 b€low presents the budget execution for extemally fimded resources for the Fy
208n4.

xx
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Chart 6: Budget erecution for externally funded resources for f"f 2023/24 (KSh. Bilions)

Budget execution - Externally Funded ResourcesFY 2023/24
59.96%

.202324 Approv.d BudCet r 20232it E)eendihrre . 202324 %Absorptlon

Budget Execution by Programme
The National Treasury implemented the 2023D4 budget within four economic progammes.
Thesc were: General Adminishatiorq Planning and Support Services; Public Financial
Manag€rna! Economic and Financial Policy Formulation and Management; and Market
C-ompetition.

As demonstrated in the chart bclow, Market Competition and Creation of Enabling Busiaess
Environment Programrn€ had the highest absorption at 100 percent followed by Economic and
Financial Policy Formulation and Management at 88.70 percent, General Adminishation at
86.f I pcrce.ng Public Financial Managem@t at 64.06 prcent Chart 7 below illustrates the
Natioral Treasury budget execution by programme for th e FY 2023n4.

Chart 7: Budget cxecution (KSh. Billions) and proportion (%) by Programme (I(Sh.
Billions) for the FY 202324

TNT Budget Execution by Programme
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Key Achievements under programmes

The National Treasury registered Key Achievernents dtring the Financial Year 202312024.
They include:

Under General Administration, Planning and Support Services programme, the
National Treasury leased 3,546 security vehicles for the National Police Service towards
e4hsrrcing security;

Undcr the Public Financid Mr-orgenent progremme, despite not meeting revenue
targets in absolute terms, total revenue collection grew by 14.5 per cent an increase from a
growth of 7.3 per cent recorded in June 2023. National Treasury mobilized a total of
KSh.4.3 billion worth ofprivate capital that reached linancial closure under Public Private
Partnerships; registered 21,335 AGPO Enterprises against a target of 20,000; rtigili2sd a1
additional 13,500 govenunent services from 4,500 recorded in 2023; and conduaed 240
Value for Money Audits;

Under Economic and Financial Policy Formulation and Management programme, the
National Treasury developed the Framework for verification and payment of outstanding
Contribution in Ueu of Rate (CILOR) for County Goverrments. In addition, the National
Treasury implemented measures to attract tl[ee (3) NIFC firms. These include (i)
facilitating discussions with regulators to introduc€ large scale global insurance provider
into the market, (ii) collaborating with the Departrnent of Immigration to facilitate fast-
tracked investor and work pennit issuance and (iii) supporting a foreign incoming Venture
Cspild fiml ryith business regisEation; and

Under Mark€t Competition and Creation of an Enabling Business Environmetrt
programme, the National Treasury through Cornpetition Authodty of Kenya determined
9370 ofmerger and acquisitions applications and concluded 95% ofCases ofDeterrence of
Abuse ofBuyer Power. With respect to access to justice, the National Treasury throngh the
Competitional Tribunal determined 100%o ofAppeals on Cornpetition.

Highlights of Bottorn-Ul)
2023/2{ Financial Year

tr,cononric Tlansfolnration Agenda uclrievernents f(,r. thtl

No. BETA Milestone
Achieved

2022 2023
Change

Comments

(a) F+.blished thc Ftuatrcial
tadnsion Frmd (Husdcr
Fund) undcr the Section
24 (4) of the PFM Act.

The firnd will enhance finaocia.l acccss to Micro 8nd
Small E tsrpriscs 8t dordablc ratcs

o) Support of Goycmment-
lo4overnmont
fiarrrork for
ftnportatiotr of Pstoleum

Provided thc lattcr of Support to hciliht€ dle
implcmenta.tion of importation of Pctrolcum tkough
the GovcrntrEirt to Govemment (G-to4)
arrangemcnt \vith the Governmcnt ofthc Uni&d Arab
Eniralcs (UAE). This nas aimed ar easing tlrc
prcszurc on thc mordhly demad for USD

(c) Ensuring sustainability of
Statc Coryorations

Prepared the Privatization Bitl, 2023 which is aimed
a! encouragiog rnore panicipation of the privarc
sector in thc economy. Ownership Rcgulations have
been developed to guide management of commercial
stalc coryoratiotrs.
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Emcrging Issucs

The emerging issues that impact€d on the operations the National Treasury irclude: -

Technological advancement in the ICT sector present opportunities to leverage ICT
innovations in tle conduct of bushess as well as risks relati[g to govemance and data
security. As &e financial systems increasingly go digitat there is the associated risks
with cyber-attacrks;

The proliferation offake news on social media platforms, which have a widcr audience
and faster response time sometirnes portrayed the National Treasury in a negative
maDler;

1l

lll Green Finance: with climate change concerns, there is the pressing need to integrate
environmental, social, and govemance (ESG) considerations into fiscal policies and
investnents;

lr

Development ofSector specific Project Appraisal Manuals continues to be a priority to
guide sector spccific malysis- The National Treasury is required to dwelop over 40
sector specific appraisal manuals to guide the over 40 sectors on the nuanced appraisal
process; and

Debt sustainability conc€rns. Ensuring that debt levels remain srstainable wftile
firnding essential services is a critical challenge that continues to face the National
Treaswy.

Challenges

Some of tlre challenges the National Treasury faced while implementing the 2023124 badget
inclnde:-

Resource Constraint persisted and affected implementation of budgets;

The rationalization of the budget, occasioned by underperformance of revenue
c< lection and emerging govemmat priorities allected the impl.rne"tation of
programmes. In the FY 2023124, the National Treasury Aced a total reverue collection
shortfall of KSh. 204.9 billion on account of shortfalls in both ordinary revenue and
ministerial Al-A;

ll1. Shortage ofKey Technical Staff continues to alfect operational efficiency in the core
mandde:
(a) Despite recruitment of staffacf,oss certain cadres, the National Treasury continues

to experience sufr shortage across all cadres against authorized establishment. As
indicsted in the operational performancc on human resource, the current staff
capacity is at 58% This is mainly attributed to ratural attrition. The planned
recruitment and promotion of staff by the appointing authorities has been slow
hence affccting scrvice dclivery and succ€ssion managcmcnt initiatives; and

Itf,llr
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O) Operating environment is manifestd among others, by shortage of oIfice space
especially for key technical staffand, Inadequate resourcing ofthe Monitoring and
Evaluation firrction.

To manage the above emerging issues aad challenges and ensure successful implementation of
the National Treasury goals and objectives, the Ministry undertook the following: -

i. Raised domestic resources to support implementation of varjous ongoing programme
tlnough developrnent ofdiverse methods for domestic resource mobilization;

Continued to implement succession planning towards progressively filling in staff
shortage, continued training and timely promotions; and

Fqgaged otler development partoers for concessional loans and grants as well as
prnsued strategies to finance govemment projects.

Recommendations

In order to address the challenges and emerging issues, the following measrues should be
undertaken: -

Sustain efforts for effective mobilization of resources to financ€ public expenditure
particularly towards facilitation and implementation of the Boftom-Up Economic
Transformation Agenda and emerging Govemment priorities. Key in this respect is the
need for adequate resourcing of Kenya Revenue Authority to deptoy innovative tax
administation for elEcient and optimal collection oftaxes.

In addition, the National Treasury should leverage on the digitization of all critical
Governrnent proc€sses with a view to bringing convenience to citizens and raising
revenue efficiently for Govemment services that are paid for electronically;

Reforms in Public Financial Management and taxation should be sustained to ensble
the National Treasury expand the fiscal space and enlunce absorption capacity. This
includes refonning institutions and restructuring of parastatals to wean some from
reliance on exchequer;

ilr. r r,,:,:ll;.:r.r,, l',i.,r,rr i'i
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Sfr€ngthedng fsx {.lministrstioq The National Treasury should pnhence KRA's
capacity to leversge technology to seal leakages; eohancernents of iTax and Integrated
C\stoms Mmagerrent System (iCMS); and use of e-TIMS (Tax Invoice Management
System). These policy strategies will expand the primary surplus in the fiscal
framework and stabilize the growth ofpublic debt thereby boosting the country's debt
sustainability position;
Cortinued implementation of succession planning especially with respcct to
r€c(uitment of key technical staff to achieve optimal staffing lewls for enhurced
operational efficiency;

Streogthedng Monitoring and Evaluation Framework and capacity through automation
of the Planning and M&E processes;
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vi. Continued leveraging on ICT to cnsure timely delivery oftargets and foster elfcieocy;
80d

knplementing the recommendations arising from the 2023D4 proj*t rationalization
review to achieve optimal project portfolio and inorease fiscal space.

Going fcward the National Treasury, will support ttre Govtrrm@t's priority on scaling up
effo{ts otr polisy htcrventions aud stuctursl refcurs under BETA so as to navigate the gtobal
turbulcnce, accelcrste ccoromic rocovery, and address overrching development challenges
namcly creatingjobq cradicating poverty and mitigating climate change. As part ofthe efforts,
the National Treasury will acoelerate invcstnents in: (i) reforming ma*cts (ii) domestic
resourco mobilization and application ofthose resources to development projocts; (iv) reform
utd rcstructure of Staac0wned Eatities ard (v) digitization of govcmmcnt scrviccs.

v[

Signature ,

DR. CHRIS KIPTOO, CBS

PRINCIPAI

,",....10ll[fi

SECRETARY/ NATIONAI. TREASIIRY

rv



'llrc Nlti<rrrai 'lrtlrrrlr\ & Flconolltic PIrnllIn,l
i\sr::n Ollicc.s !:zrnriir Perrsiot lrrrrri
.\.irrulir llcp,,r-1 an.l [:irr.nirll SLlrtcriltn,r ilr ihc r.l; crrdrj -]i; Junr li)2 |

6. STATEMENT OF PERIIORMANCE AGAINST

OBJECTIVF,S FOR THE FY 2A2D3

PREDITERMINED

Introduction

Scction 8l {2) (f) ofthe Public Financo Matragement Act, 2012 requires that, at thc cnd ofcach

finmcial yctr, the accounting officer when financial staoments of each National

Government entity in accordance with the standards atrd formats prescrihd by the public

Sector Accounting Standards Board includes a statement ofthe national government cntity's

performance rgqinst predetemined objectives The key developmot objeAives of the Nsti@al

Trcasury's 2018-2022 Stratcgic Plm rc to:-

(a) Strengthen organization capacity for quality service delivery;

(b) Fqhals€ ms[ilizatioru allocation and utilization ofpublic resources;

(c) Ensue stable and sustainable maso-ecotr.mic environmenq and

(d) Easrcrnatct structurcs that mcorrage competition md orderly conduct of busincss;

Progress on Attainn0ent of Strategic Development Objectives

For purposcs of implemenring and c€scading the above dcvelopmcnt objcctivcs to specific

scctcrs, all the dcvelopm€nt objcctives w€f,e mrde Specific, Measurablc, Achievable, Rcalistic

aad Time-bound (SMART) and converted into development outcomes. Attetrdant indicstors

were identified for tracking progress and performance mea remsrrt Bclow is the progress

imlrlarcr*.ti6a 6fthe stated objectives: -

rvl
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PROGRAMM
E

st&
PROGRAMM
E

Drllvcry Uuit IGytupdt tG, Pcrfornucc
Indicator

Annual Targct Acturl rt
!t 30rh
Juoe 2024

Yarirncc Remerkr

Progrrmmc l:
Gencral
Adminirtrrtioo,
Planning rnd
Support
Scrviccr

sPl
Adminirtration
Servicrs

Administration Sccunt-v
l,6a!rd

Vchiclca Soority vchiclcs lcasod 4,023 3,546 477 Due to rcprioriti?rtion ftom tolling
n additional vchiclcs to rcplacing

o ld IIceq thc tarysl \{as not
achicycd. Going ftn*ard, thcrc is a
considcrdion to shm to
cnvironmcntally fticndly flec!
spccifically, piloting clccuic
vchicles

Statc
Corporations
Appeds
Tribunal
(scAr)

Appsal! sgainsr tho
surchargc decisions of
Idpcctorate of St@
Corporations
dotcrmiocd

% of apped
det€rmincd

cases 100 100 0 The Tribunal was not optimally
constitrted to fullf, dbcharye irs
manddc bllowing lhc cxpiry of the
tcnur€ of the chairman and onc
Board Mcmber
Tha madate of ttrc Tribunal is
dcpendent on thc operations of the
oficc of Inspecor Gencml of Stale
Corporations rvhich for 6 long time
has not issued an!, ceftific8t of
rurchargc. The Ccnificate of
surcharge is a formal documcnt
issucd a Ins?cstor Gcrtral of State
Corporations to indicate that a
individual has becD assesscd a
charge or pcnalty for los of or
misappropriation of firnds of a State
Corporation ad which rhe
individual is toSP 2 Human

Rcsource:
Mrrl!Scment
Scrviccr

Statc
Corporstims
Appcalg
Tribur8l
(scAT)

Rcvicwcd SEc
Coryorations Act

No. ofreviewed Acls 0 Underperformaacc duc to dclay in
g8zcuEment of th€ Boand. The
gazcltcmcEt was donc in January
2024 bencr the proccss of rwicw
will bc uodertakcD in Fy 2024125
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i-hc Nltional i'rcr::rrrr' & Economl.: pl0norns
i.siin Offic.ri irint;l\ Pcnston Fund
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PROGRAMM
E

SUE
PROGRAMM
E

Dcllvcry Unit Kcy Ootput K"y Performrncc
Indicrtor

Annual Targct Actuf,l a!
rt I)th
Julrre 2U21

Variance Rcmark!

SP 3 Finrncirl
Scrwiccr

Public &rvice
Supcr
Antludion
Schcmo @SSS)

Public Servantt
enrcllcd onto PSSS

% lwcl of cligiblo Public
Servants cnroucd onto
PSSS

100 100 0 Tlrc ble public lcrvalts arE on
boaded in real timo and existing
oocs maintaincd through
rcmittances of contributions to the
PSSS

Ponsions
Depafinat

Pcnsions claims paid No of days takcn to
pmccss pension claims

60 60 0 Thrgct Achieved

Kenlz Revenuc
Authority

frioaq,
collcctcd

rEYenuc Ordinary rcveluc as a
pcrcentage ofGDP

l8 10.4 -7.6 All rtvenue catcgories recordcd
bclow target p€rformancc with
iocomc ta\ rccoding thc bighest
shorGll of 50.9 billion on account
of below target collcction ia both
PAYE of 25.E billion and other
income ta.r of 25. I billion.Itrstitut

Certificd
Financial
ItrvcstsrcIlt
Analy$

of Ircomc tom member
sorvices and
consultirg activities

At least IGhs.4,500,000
or 500,000 per mon0r

July -March Kshs
21,090,604
tom
ttaifiig
and nerr
memberc'
rcgistraion

19,590,60
4.00

Thc iltstitute had a pGitivc rctum on
tminings and workshop 6rums due
to aggrcssive marketing hcnce the
surpassed taryer

ICFA
Rrcruhed

Members At lcast 40 ncw members
(oidy with Membcr
Scrvices Tcam)

July -March 60
membcn
havc bcen
approvcd

20 Taryct supasscd due to additiooal
Ecrultnclt drivc cfhrts

sP. 1
Scrvicts

ICT hformation,
Communication
and Technology
Unit

National Asscts and
Liabilitica System
dovelopcd

% level of development
of thc Naionsl Assets
and Liobilities
Marugcment Slstem

50 50 0 The torgct was to devclop tho asset
managcmcnt Modulc which has
becn finalizcd. The Uabilities
Managemelt Modulc is scheduled
for thc FY 2024125rognmme 2

Public
Financirl
Mtnrecmctrt

SP, 1 Rcmurce
Moblltation

Rcourcc
Mobilizadon
D@artmctrt

Rrsoucas mobilizld
fiom devcl@mcnt
partrenl

Ext ma.lly mobilizcd
rEsourcesasa%offiscal
gap

40 46 17 6.t7 The c)d-a mobilization was
occasioned by uDdcrperformalcc in
domcstic rsvcnuc which meanr $at
to cover uD for the fiscal caD.
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PROGRAMM
E

SI'E
PROGNAMM
E

Dcllvery Unit IGy Outp Kcy Pcrfoturnce
Itdicrtor

Annual Target Actud
rr 1}rh
June 202C

Variance Rrmrrkr

ditia'nal eldcmal financing was
wsra,Itcd

EYtcmal mobilizcd
rBourccs disburscd rs I
% of rcsourccs hudgeted

100 -23 Thc disbuIsement is bascd on
milcstoocs achjqvcd bv tlle
implementiug agcncics, cvidenc€d
bl, submission of inErim peymcnt
ccftificates as w€ll as disbursement
linkcd rformancc tr.Dcbt Policy,

Suategy and
Rhk
Managemcnt
Depafincllt

M-Akib4 soverign
Grrc4 and
bcnchms* Bonds

No. of Sovereign Grcen
boDd! issued

I 0 Mar*a conditions
favorablc

wcll not

No. of bcacbmark bonds
issued

,|
6 3newbcnchmark bonds issued and

3 carly issred r$rc re-opcDed to
[e$,invcstors.

Annual
Plln

Borrowing No ofAnnual Bonor+ing
Plans

0 Tbryct achicvcd

Dcbt Fcording
8nd scttlcment
Dcpaftrcnt

Mrffs serviceablo
public dobt serviccd

% Of mdurc s€wicesblc
public debt scrviccd

t00 t00 0 ThrBet achieved

Amual Public Dcbt
Mrnagcncnt
Porbrmancc rcport

No, of dcvelopod Aanuat
Public Dcbt Managcment
pcrformanc€ rrDort

0 Targct achieved

Publistrd Extcmal
Public Debt Stock &
Rcgister oa thc TNT
v,BbBit€

No. of Publisbed
Extemal Public Debt
Stock & Pegiscr on thc
TNT ucbsite

0 Taryct Achievcd

PPP Unh Prive capial
rnlockcd for
ilvcstsnctrts in PPP
Pmjccts

Amomt mobitzcd in
I$hs. @illion)

50 4.3 45;l KSh. 4 billion was raised against a
targct ofKsh. 50 billion. The KSh.
4.3 billion relarcs to dcwlopmcut of
3,069 residcntial uaits fortbc Kcnva
De&nse Forccs un&r a 15 vcar
Build md Transfer @T) Modct. Thc
projoct schieved financial closr in
May 2024 and constntction began in
hrc 2024.
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PROGRAMMt su&
PROCRAMM
E

Dcllvoy Unit IGy Output Koy
Indicetor

Pcrfotmrncc Annurl Trrgct Actud !!
rt 3oth
June 2(D4

Variancc Rcnrrkr

Th€ sgahst the target was
occasioncd by financial clor of
thrEe (3) projec{s $ith a combined
value ofl(Sh. 147 billion which had
bcen projcctcd to achicve fmancial
closc during tbc pcriod under
rcvicrr The 3 projccts arc l.ot 32 of
the Road Annuity Programmc which
rvas terminatcd by the cont-acliDg
Authority, 35MW Orpor.vcr 22
Geothcrma.l Po*cr Plant and
Equipment, Operation and
Mairtenance ofPort Assets in Lamu
and Mombasa

Global Fmd Aduh ard childrcn
providld with Ami-
Rrtmviral Tbcrov

Number of AdulE and
Children Rccciving ARf

1.2 t.2 0 Tlrget achicved

ACT Trcatncnt No, of Paoplc rEcciving
ACT (Mllions)

6 6 0 Thc total numbcr of confirmed
malaria cases annually is about 6
million. The numbcr of doses of
Agt distributed to cnsure
conthuous supply a hcility is 7
million doscs annually. On a quaner
about 1.5 million doss arc expectcd
to be issucd to facilities.TB patienb tllded

and tested for HIV
% of TB pdicnts fieatcd
and tested for HIv

100 97 3 Underachic vement Elatca to the fact
that t68ting is volufary, sme of tlrc
parien6 dia$osed with TB whcn
requcstrd !o bc tcstcd for HIV
dcclircd

SP 2 .Budgct
Forrnulrtion
Coordinrtion
rnd
Mrn, ent

DiEclordc of
Budgsl Fiscal
&Pcoromic
A&t!

Amud
Budget

Naional Annual national budget
pEscntcd to Padiamcnt
by 30th April

I I 0 Targct Achievcd

Budgct Rwiew and
Orttook Papcr

Budgct Rcyicw and
Qutlook Papcr

I I 0 Thrgct Achicved

NI
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PROGRIMM
E

su&
PROCRAMM
E

Dcllyery Unit IGy Oohut Key Performrncc
Indicetor

Arnurl TarEat Actull rr
rt 3{hh
Junc 2O24

Variance Rcmarks

Budg6t
Siltcfielrt

Policy Budgct Polisy SEtcmont I I 0 ThrBct Achicvcd

Annual Appropriaticm
Bilt

Annual
BiI

Appopriation I I 0 'I\rgct Achicved

Supplcmcutary
AppmpriatioD Bills

Supplcmentary

lplropriation Bills
2 2 0 Ta8ct achived

Finance Bill Finarcc Bill I I 0 Tkget Achic!,ed
SP 3. Audit
Serviccr

Ifilmal Audit
Dcpartrnctrt

Va.lue for Money
AdiE conductcd

No. of VFM Audirs 268 240 -2E Budget cuts

Govcmmcnt Entitie!
capacity built on
IRMF

No. of Covcmmc[t
Entitics capacity built on
IRMF

36 4 Tatget fl[passed due to morc
rcqucsts from MDAS to bc trained

Audit Committees
Capaoit_v Built.

No. ofAudit Committecs
Capacity Builr.

24 26 2 Tarset surpasscd due to morE
rcqucsts ftom Countv Govcmments
to bc hained

SP
Accounting
Scwicca

4 Accountng
Scrvicrs
Dcpafincnt

Conloliddcd
FinaDcial Statcmcrns

No. of Coosolidsted
FiDancial Statc-rnc !

I 0 Thrgel achieved

of6cen traiocd on
Inomarional Public
Scclor Acconting
Standards (IPSAS)

No, of Officcn raircd on
Intemaional Public
Scaor Accounting
StEndads (IPSAS)

2000 2100 100 'Ihrgct surpassed

National Sub-
Coutrty
Trasuries

Si& hspc*ion of
NatioDal Sub-Cruntv
TEasurics uldcrtakeD

No. of irspcctioo rcpons 80 -52 ThrBet not achieved due lack of
tunding

IFMIS
DcpBrtms[t

PFM uscn trahcd on
IFMIS in financial
rcPorting

No. ofPFM us€rs trained
2,000 2,100 100

Thrget supassed

Govcmrncnt
Digilal
Payments Urit

Go''remmcnt
Ptymcnts Digitizod

No, of
Govcmncnt
Digitizcd

additionat
Paymcnts 3,500 17,000 13,500

Trlgct surpassed duc to
prioritization of digital izai or of
Gor.t rrvices and improved
compliance by MDAs
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PROGRAMM
E

st E-
PROCRAMM
E

Hlwry Unit I(!y Ootput Kcy Pcrformrnce
lidicrtor

Annu!l Ttrgct Acturl e!
!tfi
Junc 20i14

Variancc Rcmark!

Publio Scclor
Accounting
Stlrrdsrds
Board

Guirlclims for IPSAS
4t,42,43,44,45 ,46
doyclop€d

No.of
dcvclopcd

guidelinss 6 4 Th€ underyrcrformarcc due !o the
fact tha thc dcv€lopmcnt of the
rcmaining guidclircs was
contingent upot thc appmval of
traNitior to accrual accounting
rvhich came in 4th quafcq lhercfore
thc same has bcen esrmarkcd for lst
uarcr ofFY 202425

Accountmts frcm rhc
OAG, Puliamcnt, and
Judiciar-v on
rcqubiEs for
tansitiotr to ac.rual
arcqltting sc[sitizcd

No.of
sensitized

Accounlants 200 600 400 Tbe overachievcment lr?s duc to
cnhanced need for all accountants to
cmbracc transition !o accrual
accourting

Modcl intemal
colttrol framework for
County Govcmmeot
sntitics dwclopcd

Model Dcvelopcd 0 thrgct achievcd

Training Accouatant
fiom Teachcrs
Traiaing Collegcs
(n'cs).

No, of Account rts
lcositized

50 600 550 The ovcrachicvement \Bas duc to
cnhanccd need fur all acrountants to
cmblact tratrsition to accrual
accounting

Ircmal Auditon and
Risk PractitiorErs in
Public scclor on
Global Int mal Audit
sonsitizld

No. of
sclsitized

Auditors 200 580 380 'Ihryct on track

Finaocial Rcporting
TcnplsB for Crufty
GoYcmment on
Accnlal Accotltrting
dcv

No. of
Dcrdopcd

Tbmplatcs 9 9 0 thrgct AchicvEd
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PROGRAMM
E

slr&
PROGRAMM
E

Dcllvcry Unit IGy Ortput KG? Pcrformrnce
Indicetor

Arnull Trgct Actul i!
!t aIh
Juae2U21

V!rif,nc. RGmsrks

AJdit commitEc
mcmbclr of Public
Scclor Audit
Commitces
(Scnsiti.zation of
Govcmirg bodies urd
Scnior Management)
scnsitizcd

No . of Audit committce
sltd seoior managcmclt
tsaincd

200 400 200 Ths oYerachieyemeflt rvas due !o
cnhanccd nced for Ell eccoudanb to
embIac€ tra$itioo to accrual
accour ing

County visit to chcck
compliance with
financial rcporting
conduaed

No. ofcounties visitcd to
monitor compliance rvith
standards

t2 4 -8 Underpcrformance due to
refocusing from county visits to
compliancc suwcys

Finsicial Rrporting
(FiRc) Awards
Evaluatioa and Gala
Dnncn cooductsd

% of Entitics Financial
Rcpon rvalusted .

I I 0 AU eight hundred and
thrrc(833)Finaacial
Submidcd alld Eyaluated.

di4v
Rcpotu

Rrvicrrrd Guidclincs
on NatioDs.l aod
County GowrDmerts
Audit Comminec

Rcviervcd National and
Countv Gowmments
Audit committee
guidelincs

2 2 0 Targct Achicved

Public S.ctor IDtcmal
Contml guidclineg

No, of Cuidclines
dcvelopcd

t I 0 Taryct Achicved

SP 5. Suppty
C'haln
Mfiigcmcnt
&rviccs
(SCM!)

Public
PIocurimcnt
Dcpafttrcm

AGPO enterpriscs
rcgisErcd

No. ofAGPO cnorprises
rEgisErEd

20000 21335 1335 Tkget surpassed duc to etrharc€d
lsr8sEd sercitizdion

AGPO beneficiaries
Eaincd on
Govcmmer[
Procurpm€r
Opportutitics

No of AGPO
bcncfciarics tmincd o0
Govcmment
Procurpment
Opporturitics

2000 2235 ?35 'Ihrgct ovcrachicvcd due to
parhcnhips with othcr Oovcrnmcnt
InstitutioN to train mon
bcneficiaries.

Public
Procuement

Market Picc Index
survcy conducted

No. of MPI
Icpons publishcd

survey 4 0 4 'Iblget not achicvcd du€ to budgct
constsartrts
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PROGNAMM
E

sue
PROGRAMM
E

Dcllvcry Unit IGy Output Kcy Pcrformrncc
Irtdicrtor

Annual Targct Actual !r
rt 30th
Junc 2024

Vrri!Dce Rcmarks

Pcgulatory
Authority
(PPRA

MCDAs monitored
on Compliucc with
PPADA 2OI5

No. of MCDAs
monilorcd on
Cornplianc€ wift PPADA
20t5

200 2087 IEET Olemchievement anributed to
lowraging technology to undertakc
audits bascd on inbrmdion posted
on Public Prccuremcnt Information
Poftal and sitc visil! undcrtaken onlv
for selecr projccr undei

cmcntatron
Public Procuremcnt
disputcs resolvcd

7o Of cases rcsolved
\*ithh 2l days

100 100 0 Target achicvcd

Supply chain
pmfessionals ccnificd
in thc public scctor

% of supply chain
professionals c€rtifi cd ill
the public sector

60 44 -t6 Underpcrformance due to
inadcquate cnforcement of
compliancc by Rcguluory entities
ard employers

SP. 6 Public
Financial
Mrnigrment
Rcforms

PFMR
Sccretarid

Skills and capacity in
PFM

No. of officen trained on
Public Finance
Mahagcmcnt

8,000 8, t50
150 Annua.l ta8ct surpossed

PFM Reforms Stratcgy
Dovcloped

0 Thryct achicvcd

Dcrclop lmplcmcming
Agcncies Wort Plans

0 T gct achievcd

Cumulaivc % of PFM
reforms implemcntd
( 102 Eform
intcrventions)

)n t7 -3 The undcrperformancc due o delay
in aDproval of somc legisldions by
Parliament aod inade4uxe funding.
Thesc bave rollcd over to thc FY
2024ks

SP.7 GoYcrnncbt
Irvc Er.ni atrd
Al'.t

Col,l'nscnt
Itr'/rslt,latlt dtd
Public
Enterpriscs

BudSet for Ststo
Corlrc|frtion! Rcyicwcd

% of Statc CorpoEtions
Budgcb rwicwcd

t00 100 0 AII rrlqvlnt budgcts for SC revic\trcd

3 ya{s rwort on
of

Statc
&.

AlwDcot
lnvcrtmctlt in
corPcrrtiolr
GovlrEmaat-
Corpor!tiols

lintcd

No of asscasmcnt Rcpon I 0 TdrB€t Achicvcd. Rq,o ptfp'rEd and
tctlt lo Parliamcnl a3 Equircd
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Arrnual rt lnd Financial Statcrncnts for thc l'ear cndcd -10 June 202,1
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SIIB.
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E
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Arnud TrrgU Acalll rr
rt 30fr
Junc2U2l

Yrrirnee Rrmrrkr
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KSh (nilio!)
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lhc Natronal 'ireesLrn & llcononric Plauoing
sian Of6cers |runilr Pcnsion Fund

.,\nnual Reporl .rDd Fioanci3l Stf,tamoots tbr thc \ear (iidcd ltl Jtlllc 202.1
PROGRAMM
E

su&
PROGNAMM
E

DcllvaT Unit ICy Output Kc, Pcrformttrcc
Iirfcator

Annud Targct Actull rr
rt 3fih
Jur,c2t21

Vrriancc Rcmrrk!

PtivnizstioD
Colnod!!ioD

govcrstrtaot
ownod Gotitics

No. of Crovarnnant owrcd
cditic! privatizcd

4 0 4 No spprov.d traBoctio0 hr! bccn
oor4lctdi howcvcr, thc followilg is rhc
Prcgrt!!:
. Drot Sharc Salc Dosumentatio is in
plaoo for thc following cotitics:
(!) lDtroxtional Ho(el. Kcoya Limitcd
(Hilton)
(b) K.ry! Hotcl Propcdid Limitcd
(c) Moutaio Lodeo Limitcd(d) KWA HoldinS E.A Limitcd
.Drai E:ertssron of lnrcrEl (EOI) hrs
bccll pEplxEd for lnt.firstioDal Holcls
(Kerya) Limitcd.

No. of mtities approved
for inclusion in the
privaization programme

7 0 7 Following the opcrAioalizaion of
thc Privatizarion Act, 2023 ot 27th
Oclobcr 2023, tll€ a$cssmcrt
funstion was taru&rled to the
Naioml Trcasury. Thc CS NT
ptblishcd Privatizatiotr ProgEmmc
otl 21h Norcmber 2023. Howcvcr,
thc high coun is$cd a @nscrvarory
otdcr thd suspcDdcd
implqrncrbtioE of scction 2l(l) of
tbe Privaizaion Aa
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il'r Ilfliunal Trr:lsrir.. & i.,conlrnri! PIantrrrs
isirrr Offrcrr-< l rrinrt, Ponsion Fuld
\rtnual Rcl-'on .rrrd IincDciiti Statcnrous lor thc leal cnrled ]0 Jurlc -l0l.l

PROCRAMM
t st&

PROCNAMM
E

Ddlvcry Unit Kcy Output I(Gy Pcrfoturncc
lndicator

Annurl Target Actuel r!
rr 30th
Jluae 2024

Variancc Rcmarks

Kcnya Trade
Net$!*
Agcncy

Cargo dwrtling tino
ai pods of entry
rcduccd

No. of days takcn !o clcar
goo& ar thc port! ofentry

3 3 0 Thrget achicved

Programmc 3:
Economic ead
Financial Policy
Formuhtion
end
M!nrgemcrlt

SP 3.1.1 Fiscal
Policy
Formulation,
DcYelopment
rnd
Mantgcment

Macrc and
Fisoal Atrairs

Stablc Avenge annual
iofaiol ratcs
m&irtaitled

Inllation rale (%) 5 r2.5 0.046 o7 Taryct within polic], mngc

SFong Oficial
forcign rcscrvcs

Mcrrths ofimport covcr 55 4 -1.5 Tbrgrt not rlet duo to high dcmand
for forex.

Fbc..l dcEcit as s % of
GDP including grant

% offiscal de6ck 4.4 56 -1 2 lbrgct not achievcd duc to rcycnuc
unde4rerbrmance .

lnEr-
Govcrnmmtal
Fiscal Relations

County Allocation of
Rcvcnuc Bill (CARB)
& Division of
Rrvcnuc Bill (DORB)
pnpsred.

County Allocation of
Rcvcnuc Bill (CARB) &
Division of Rcrcnue Bill
(DORB)

2 0 TarBct achievcd

Francwork
vcrfication
paymant
outsta!ding
Cootribution

for
and
of

itr Lieu
ofRate (crl,oR)

No. of Framcuork for
vcrificarion and paymcrf
of outsbnding
Contributior in Licu of
Ratc (CILOR)

I 0 Framcwo rk dcveloped and awaiting
Cabin* Approval

Natobi
hcrnations.l
Financial
CcDtE
Authority

Nairobi Intemaional
Fmancial Certlr
(NIFC) guidclirca
snd rcgulations
ptrparcd

No. of Guidclincs and
rcgulations prcparEd

I I 0 'Ikgct achiercd

ItrvcstmcnB end
Reglona.l Financial
Instiirtioos certificd

No. of Cenificd MFC
firms

4 3 I Thrc firms certifed
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fir. Nuronal'Tru.tstir\ & Econortir: Pianuins
\siar Ollicer-. irririllr Pcnsrtrn Funil
\nnuul l{cpon .riid linancial Statclnt:rrls lirr the \.ear (ndDd -l(l Jrl:rc l0l.l

PROGRAMM
E

su&
PROGRAMM
E

Dcllvcry Unit IGy Ortput Kry Pcrforrnrrce
Itdicrtor

Annu!l Targlt Astual a!
rr xlth
June 2024

Vari!ncc Rcmalks

Finsncial aod
&doral Aftts

ClimAo Changc Fund
(CCD established in
countica

No, ofcouqtics with CCF 2 I .t Part from Nairobi Coufy, CCF
has been c$ablishcd in all the 46
Counties.SP3.2 Debt

Mrnrgcmcnt
Dcbt Policy,
S!-dES/ and
Risk
Monagcmcnt
Dcparinellt

Sustaillablc
Dcbt

Public Public Dcbt at ! KSh. l0
trillion

l0 65%of
GDP
( 10.56 trln)

l.t2 Und€r achi€vomcnt \Aas due to
dcprcciation of thc Kcnyan Shilling
against Foreign Currcncics.

Fimncial and
Scctoral Aftirs

Capiul injectcd inm
Credit Cuarartec
Scheme (CGS)

Value in KShs. (Billions) 5 3 2 The 3 billion allocaed is srill
panding awaitiog thc corpontion of
thc CGS as a company. Documcnts
for establishment of the CGC arr
with the Cabiner

Programmc 4:
Mrrkct
Competition
rnd Crcltion of
Enebling
Busincss
Environmcnt

sP 4.1
Ellminrtioq of
Rc!trictiye
Trade Practiccs

Compctition
Authority of
Kcnlz

Conzumer complaint
otr Compctition
iDvestiEaed

Yo of coruumer
complaints on
competition in\€stigabd

100 57 43 Tarycl Dot achievcd duc to
complexity of thc cascs ard b,udget
cub

Mcrgcr
acquisitions
applicaions
dctermiD€d

and % applicAiond cars
determincd./ concludcd

100 93 -7 Targqt not achievcd duc to budget
cuts

Casos of Dqtenrncc
of Abuse of Buyer
Pows cmcludcd

Cascs concludod as a %
of total inycstigstio'ls

95 62 -33 ThrBct not achicyed duc to
complexity of the c8!es.

Crses otr rEstsictiw
tndc practices
ilvcatigated and
fi'rrlizcd

o/o of cascs on resEictivc
tradc phctices
investigated atd fihaliz€d

100 42 -58 'IhrBet not achiev€d dus to
inadequde furding

SP.4.2Acc6s to
Justlcc

Compotltion
Tribuflal

Appeals
Compctition
kelmitred

on % of Appcalr oD
Compctition Dacrmircd

100 100 0 Tatget achievcd

l(xxvlll



l he i.lur,orrlrl Tr;li.iLIi I' li l:rlrni,rrrrc i,l;rrrirrrtrl
\srat ( )l ficc' i I unrrl' lJerl:iron l;iroC
\rtrtrrrri li:Por( ilrr,l i; r r I i I r r ,,. i i L I :;h lctili, i,i i,)i lhU i,iilt ellcl(rl lo.llI\c 2arf.,

7. MANAGEMENT DISCUS$ON AND ANALY$S

7.l.Report on Operational and financial performance of the organization for the last three-to-five-
year period

7.I.1. Operatiotrrl Performsnce

Operational performmce is exdnined from two main indicators. These ae: (i) pcrformanoe contract
management (ii) human resource staff capacity.

T.l.l.l.Performsnce Contract Matragement

In the Financial Yea. 201912020, the National Trcasury and Economic Plaruring was ranked as the best
performing Ministry with a Composite Score of 3.0209. This means that TNT&P achieved but not fully
all its set PC targets resulting to a score of between 70 - 100% which translates to Good Performance.

In fte Financial Yeu 20201 21, the National Treasury and Planning was rarketl 5e in the Top Five
Perfuming Ministries with an Average Crmposite Score of 3.2124 which is a good performmce. There
was a decline in performance compared to that of 201912020 whereby TNT&P was ranked the best
performing Ministry with a Composite Score of 3.0209.

In the FY 202112022 &e National Treasury and Economic Planning retained a ranking ofposition 5 with
a composite score of 3.1173 representing 'good perfomance'. The composite score was an improvement
from the 3 .2 I 24 recorded in 2020nl .

The results for the 2022/23 have not been published, hence the composite score of 3.3158 is provisional
following moderated evaluation in September 2023.

A summary of perfonnancc contract indicators for two years and ranking for the last five years are given
in tables 2 and 3 respectively below.

Table 2. Performance in various indicators over the Iast tryo evaluation periods

I Thc tl3nl6 for 6. trY 202lt2:t hrs rot becn formelly publishcd

IXITI

Ovardl Compolite Score 3.I t7J 3JI5E

Flrlrrid StoYrrdtLip o255t) 032t9
Sarvf.c Deffvcry aut,lr6 oJll2
Corcllad*c 1.93,9 1J930
IDpLtrrcltrliotr of Prclid.rtid Dircctivct oJ6m 0.064,

Actat! to Go!,t -E.!t ProcuItEclt Opportuities 0.0{tD 0lO,l2
Plldlo! {f lrcd Co[&.at i[ P.o(rlt€tucat o.,Dil70 0Jls9t
Gotr-{lttirg irrrct L#7 0./t5tl
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Table 3: Summsry of performrnce of the Nrtionll Treasury and Economic Planring in rrDkilg of
Ministrics Departments and Agencies over five HDttrcid Yerrs

7.1.1.2. Human resource staff capacity.
Hunan resource capacity is 8 compon€nt of op€rational efficiency in the National Treasrry. In this regrd,
the National Treasury qrrently operates at 57.1 per cent staff capacity in relation to affiorized
establishmat. This is a deoline from staff operational ceacity of 58o/o it 2022121 ard67.2l percent in
2019120. The decline in staff capacity is atfibuted to slow succession management in relatioD to increasing
staf;f requirement as indicated by authorized establishment. Chart 8 below illustrates the cunmt staff
capacit5r agrinsl ggthorised establishment.

Chert 8 (a): Humtn nesounoe ctpacity for tte period 2019i20 ao 2023124
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h terms ofca&e, the National Treasury ratio of core tectmical to support stafr curr€stly stands d 39 .6 per
ccnt of in+ost staff against a target of 70 per cent. Chart 8 (b) below illustrates the composition of the
National Treasury staff disaggregated by technical and support ca&e.

Chart 8 (b): Human resource capscity for 2023124 by cr,drc
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7.1,2 Financial Performance

Over the last five-year period, the National Treasury recorded mixed trend in performance in financial
stewardship relating to absorption of GoK funds and externally funded resources as well as in A-in-A.
Charts 10, ll and 12 below indicate the specific performance in the mentioned areas.

Overall budget erecution for the National Treasury for the period 2019120- 2023/24

Chart 10 illustrates the National Treasury financial performance in relation to expenditure for the period
2019120- 2024125. The allocations to the National Treasury recorded increasing rend with highest
allocations recorded in the FY 202122. The increase in allocation in the FY 2021122 is atfibuted to
transferriry of marine and aansport firnctions to the National Treasury. These fiuctions were transferred
back to the Ministry of Transport and Infiastructure intheFY 2023124.

Chart l0: The National Treasury total budget against expenditure for 20l9n0- 2OBn4 (KSh.
Billions
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rDevelopment IRecurrent Total

Performance oferternally funded resources for the period 2Dl9fl0-2023n4

The externally funded resources rose sharply in the FY 2020121 before gradually decreasing in the
subsequeot years. Tle rise was due to mobilizatiol of additional resources to combat the COVID 19
pandemic. Chart 11 highlights the performance of externally funded resources for the period IOLIDO-
2023t24.
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Clart I l: {ie performance of erternally funded resources for the period 2018/19-202223 (KSh.
Billions)
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Performance of Appropriation in Aid the perio d 2OlBfl9-Z02ZD3

The National Treasury regi*ered a sharp rise in A-in-A allocations in theFY year 2020DI. The rise in A-
in-A relates to development partner financing towards interventions to combit COVID l9 pandemic. The
decline in A-in'A in the FY 2023/24 is due to reduction in donor commitments undei Global Fund
Programme. Chart 12 below illustrates the Eend in the performance of A-in-A for the period 2019120 to
2023t24.

2022123 2023124

Chart l2: Performance of A-in-A for the period 2018/19-2022/23 (KSh. Biltions)
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a. The National Treasury Key ProjectV Investments implemented or ongoitrg

The Table below indicates a summary of l3 key projects for the National Treasury indicating project
cost, sourc€ of funds, cumulative expenditure to date and project status.

Table 3: Key pmjects implemented by the National Treasury

No. PmJcct Prorect Cost Age ln
Ycars

Budgeted
Anrount

'/o ol
C-omphtion

Commcnts

1 l07l I1050t Specia! Global Fund - HMFM 3 24J05.00 2 9,932.74 50 Ongoing

2 !071I10601 Special Global Fund - Malaria NFM
3

8,653.00 2 2,526.26 l2 Ongoing

3. l07l108302: Credit Guarantee Scheme t0,000.00 3 0.00 30 ongoing

4 l07l 108801: Operationalization of the Kenya
Mongage Refi nance Company

10,170.00 3 2,O70.OL 25 orrgoing

5 I07l I 104401 : Contingency Fund Transfers 30,000.@ 4 1,200.00 23 Ongoing

6 lOTl l00l0l: Suppon to Public Financial
agement (PFMR)

27,427.00 9 64637 2t otrgoing

7 I O7l l08l0l: Kanya Affordable Housing Proj€ct 25,000.00 J 4,200.@ l6 Ongc,ing

8 l07l102601: Equity and Subscriptions in
Financial kEtitutions

32,533.00 7 732.OL 29 Ongoing

I l07l 108201: Karya Financing Locally led Climate
Action Progrsmme

46,793.@ 3 4,892.2t 6 Orgoing

10 l0Tll I l70l Sr+porting Access to Finance and
Fnterprise Recovery (SAFER)

I I,912./10 I 3,060.0O I orrSornS

't 1. I072l09200Easem Africa Regional Statistics
Program-for-Rcsults

l3,700.35 I 1000.00 l3 Ongoing

12. 1071I l330lRrral Kenya Finaacial Inchsion Pacility
(RK.FINFA)

40,t98.4 I 253 l6 OngomS
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7.2. Future Developments atrd other information

ln the next five (5) Year period, the National Treasury plans to implement the following Four (4) Key
Result areas and attendant strategies as stipulated in the Shategic Plan for the period 2023-2027:
l. Stable and sustainsble macrceconomic environment

Under this Key Result Are4 the National Treasury plams to:

Develop and implement macroeconomic and fiscal policies that support stable macroeconomic
envhonment and stimulate economic recovery to 5.6 percent gowth in FY 2027128;boost the ratio
of gross national savings to GDP to 13.3 percent in the FY 202? /28; increase the ratio of national
inveshents to 18.6 percent GDP intlneFY 2027128;

Oversee implementation of monetary policy that targets to maintain inflation rate at 5 percent +/-
2.5 percent; low and stable lending interest rates; stable and competitive exchange rates; and shong
official foreign exchange reserves;

lll Establislr the Kenya Credit Guarantee Company to adrninister CGS - This will entail establishing
a firnctional Credit Guarantee Company to administer Credit Guarantee Scheme (CGS);

Agricultural and Rural Financial Inclusion @K- FINFA) - this will enhance access, efficiency and
stability of agricultural and rural finance by smallholder farmers and agribusiness MSME;

Implement lhe Green Financial Markets programme to er rance access to green finance and
strengthen the enabling environment to attract gteen finance and investsnents needed to transition
to a low-carbon, climate resilient and green economy;

lt

vt

lv_

v

The National Treasury has embarked to redesigrr the taxation instrumenb to make thenr more
supportive to eco[omic activity \Mithout distorting the market and eroding investment incentives.
This will boost revsnue collection and raise tax effort from the current 16.0 perc€-nt ofGDP in FY
2023124 to where it was previously, above 20 percent of GDP. This will be done through the
implementation of the National Tax Policy and the Medium-Tenn Revenue Strategy for the period
F\ 2024n5 - 2026/27 that will provide a combination of tax administration and policy measures
to enhance revenue mobilization; and

Operationalize Nairobi Intemational Finaocial Centre (NIFC) to develop a more predictable,
efficient and globally competitive financial environment

2. Resource mobilization for financing public expeniliture
i. Under this Key Result Area, the National Treasury plans to;
ii. Broaden the tax fs5s and enhanse tax compliance;
iii. Dgitization of govemment payment services;
iv. Mobilization of extemal ald domestic resources,
v. Diversificationofborrowingsources;
vi. Undertake periodical portfolio review, assessment and reporting;
vii. Enhance public debt management efficiency and tratrsparency;
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x
xi

vul. Support contracting authorities in preparation of PPP projects and procurement of private
mYestors;
Support contracting authorities in the management of PPPs in operation;
Enhance mobilization of resources for the Project Facilitation Fund (PFF);
Establish and sustain relations with investors in PPPs;
Enhance PPP legal and regulatory fi'amework;
Flh:rrce the cqracity of County Governmeuts on tax analysis anrd revenue forecasting; and
Development of legal framework for County Government tax processes.

xtr.
xiii-
xiv.

3. Policy, Iegal and institutionat frameworks for development planning, budgeting and
intergovernmental and stakeholder relations

Under this key Result Areq the National Treasury plans to:-
Enhance uptake ofgovernment procuement opportunities by the marginalized groups;
Promote value for money in public procurernent;
Enforce compliance on public sector accounting standards and other govemment regulations;
Support effective implanartation ard reporting of reform interventions in the PFM Reforms
Strategy 2023-2028;
Prepare and disseminate guidelines on PFM with County Govemrnents;
Enhance compliance with PFM laws by County Governments;
Enhance compliance of all public sector entities with assets and liabilities policies and
gridelines;
Prepare legis.lative proposals on sharing of resouces between the two levels of goveo:ments
and among the counties are in place;
Enhance the capacity of SCs in budgeting, performance contracting, financial reporting, and
monitoring;
Develop Public Investrnent Policy and Guidelines;
Digitalize and automate the budget proc€ss;
Improve efficiency and effectiveness in pensions administration and management;
To sEengthen transparency and accountability in public investrnent management; and
kovide objective assurance on Management ofresources in public sector entities.

4. Strengthened institutional capacity and internal business processes

Under this Key Result Area; the National Treasury will implement the following;
i. Scale up efforts to towards optimal staffrng levels;
ii. Undertake Employee capacity building and development;
iii, hstitutionalizeknowledgemanaganent;
iv. Restructure the Organizational for enhanced productivity;
v. Enhancement of communication mechanism and brand identity; and
vi. Fnhance the efficiency and effectiveness ofplanning and project monitoring

l.
ii.
iii.
iv.

vi.
vii.

viii.

ix.

x.
xi.
xii.
xiii.
xiv.
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8. ETWIRONMENTALAND SUSTAINABILITYREPORTING

Tlte National Treasury's mandate is to fonnulate, implement and monitor prudent economic and financial
policies at national and county levels of govemment. The core values include customer/Citizen first,
delivering relevant goods and services, and improving operational excellence. Guided by the above
principles, we undertake the following: -

8.1 Sustainability Strategy and Profile
The Keayan economy is unwinding from layers ofnegative and persistent shocks that had a stnrctural
effect on economic activities. These shocks include: the COVID-I9 Pandemio and its ensuing effects;
conflict in Eastern Europe, and Middle East; global oil supply cuts leading to elevated commodity prices
such as petroleum products; and effects of climate change in the Country: the prolonged &ought il2021
to the floods in 2024.

These shocks escalated the cost of essential household commodities. They also pushed up fuel prices and
led to a rapid depreciation ofthe Kenya shilling exchange rate, pilling pressure on publii debt.

The foctrsed interventions, sEuchral reforms and policies ofthe Government over (he last two years have
started to yield some positive results uunely: -

i. Real GDP grew by 5.6% in 2023 up from 4.9%o in 2022, a demonstration of resilience and the
beginning of economic recovery. Growth momenhrm continued in 2024 with the economy
expanding by 5.0 percent in the first quarter and projected at 5.5 percent by the end of the year;

ii. Nominal GDP rose to l5.l trillion in 2023 from Ksh 13.5 rillion in 2022; a 12%o inctease. Similarly,
CDP per capita income increased to Ksh 293,229 in 2023 from Ksh 266,473 in 2O22;

iii. Total new jobs (both formal and informal) generated in the economy were 848.2 thousand in 2023.
Of rhil wage employrnent in tlre modern sector grew by 4.1% which ranslated to creation of 122.8
thousand new jobs;

lv-

VI

Inflationary pressures that had remained above the ? .5%o upper bound target since June 2022 have
eased. Overall inflation declined to 4.3% in July 2024 from 4.6%o in lune 2024, thereby remaining
below the mid-point of the target range. The pass-through effects of the strengthening eichange rate
sinoe February 2024, the tight monetary policy stance and interventions by Govrrnment in p.oriair,g
subsidized fertilizer and seeds have supported the easing of inflation;

The Kenya Shilling exchange has strengthened against major international currencies, following the
issuance of the US$ 1.5 billion that de-risked the 2024 Eurobond and inflow of dollar liquidity to
the Infrastructure Bond. By end July 2024, the Kenya Shilling strengthened against the us oott-
to exchange at an average ofKsh l29.8 n luly 2024 from Ksh 160.8 in January 2024; and

The external sector remains stong. The current accoutrt deficit improved to 3.7% of GDp in the 12
months to June 2024 from 4.2%o of GDP in asimilar period of 2023. Remittances increased to USD
4,536 million in the 12 months to June 2024, ald wete l2.9yohi$tu compared to a similar period
in 2023. This increase,s forex inflows into the country, some going to investnent while others support
household consumption.
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Official forcigr exctrange reserves at USD 8,462.7 million (4.6 months of import cover) by end Ju rc 2024,
provide adequate buffers and gives market confidence.

ln order to support the Govemment's Bottom-Up Economic Transformation Agenda (BETA), the National
Treaslry has implemented a growtll responsive fiscal consolidation plan over the last two years desigrred
to redrce debt vulnerabilities and rebuild fiscal buffen mid significmt global ad domestic challenges.
Special focus has been placed on broadening the revenue base and containing non-priority expenditures
while enhancing social safety nets with the support of our Development partnirs.

In order to support debt sustainability and fiscal consolidation, the National Treasury has implemented
the following measures:

Developed a National Tax Policy that was approved by parliament in December 2023 sets out
broad parameters on tax policy and other tax related matters. The Policy provides broad guidelines
for governing tax administration and the tax system in Kenya. More specifica.lly, ttre policy
provides a set of guidelines for taxation of income, goods and services and forms the basis for
review of tax legislatioq development and administration:

Developed a Medium-Term Revenue Strategy (MrRS) that was approved by cabinet on 27h
November 2023. The MTRS is aligrred to flre National rax policy and is expected to fiuther
strengthen tax revenue mobilization efforts to 20.0 percent ofGDp over the medium term;

Focused on unlocking additiona.l non-tax revenue (Appropriation-in-Aid) poteatial by Ministies,
Departments and Agencies through the services they offer to the public;

Embarked on tax policy review through a number of tax studies that will support the development
ofa progressive tax system. The objective of the review was to devetop an elaborate tax policy
that will raise adequate revenue to finance recurrent as well as development budgets. Specifically,
the review targets to:-

(a) Develop diverse methods to enlarge the tax base;
@) Minimize the tax expenditures that amount to Ksh 396.9 billion or 2.9yo of GDp as of 2022.

. of the Ksh 396.9 billion, 63.1%o is on vAT refirnds on zero rated final .ea5,'mer goodsJ md
(c) Create a tax system that is not oDly predictable to taxpayers but also yields predicta6le revenues

to Government.

v. Develop a tax system that support markets, production, consumption and investments;

vi. Strengdrened tax administration by the Kenya Revenue Authority for enhanced oompliance
through leveraging on technology to revolutionize tax processes, seal revenue loophoGs and
enhance the efficiency of tax system;

vii. Established a Fiscal Risk Committee in December 2022 in order to improve coordination of fiscal
risks analysis, quantification and mitigation in line with best practice; and
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viii. Succcssfully irnplanantation of ttre Extended Fund Facility and the Extended Credit Facility
(EFF/ECF) arrangements supported by the IMF. The program has strenghened Kenya's ability to
navigate though the recent multiple shocks and safeguard debt sustainability.

Implementation of these measures has lelded some positive dividends. Total revenue collection has
grown by 23Yo from Ksh 2.2 trillion in FY 2021122 to Ksh.2.7 tritlion in FY 2023124. Fiscal deficit
iucluding grats has declined from 6.27o of GDp in Fy 2022D3 to 5.6% of GDp ir Fy 2023124.

1.2 Environmental performance/climate change/mitigation of natural Disaster
The National Treasury has constituted a committee comprising officers from the key Departments of the
Ministry to oversee all matters relating to environmental sustainability. The Committee has since
develo@ a ministerial policy on the same in line with the National Policy on environmental managernent
and participated in planting over 30,000 seedlings ai Kessup Forest Station thus contributing towards the
l0 percent tree cover initiative. Additionally, to ensure a conducive work environment, the National
Treasuqr has contracted a company to manage cleaning and waste disposal servic€s.

1.3 Employee welfare
Employee welfare is critical for effective implementation of the prograrnmes and projects of an
organization. Noting the importance of human resources, the National Treasury has a depatment
established to handle Human Resources Management and Development. The Ministry has also established
a Human Resource Management Advisory Comrnittee and Departmental Training Committees that
processes all the promotions, discipline, training, appraisal and general employee matters in line with the
Public Service guidelines and procedures. Recruitrnent of officers is guided by dre principles ofthe public
service sach as inclusivity among others.

In addition, a committee on occupational safety and health has been established to follow up of the safety
conditions in the work place. ln order to attract and retain competent officers, the National Treasury
conducted capacity building for the staff in various technical subjects and recruited officers at the entry
grade to fill skills gaps and enhance human resource capacity.

During the review period, we implemented succession management plan by deolaring vacant posts to be
filled by the Public Service Commission at the higher levels. This is in preparation for the anticipated in
the next two years arising from retirement of officers who will have attained the exits mandatory
retirement age- Further, the National Treasury has continued to build the capacity on the online staff
appraisal management system in collaboration with the Public Service Commission to ensure seamless
implementation of the system.

1.4 Operational PracticeVMarket place practices
The National Treasury is responsible for promoting fair hade practices in the economy. To ensure effective
implementation of this function assiped bythe Constitution, one of the programmes implemented by the
Treasury is msuring that existing market structures encourage competition and orderly conduct of
business in order to support high productivity and competitive markets. This is undertakea meinly by the
Competition Authority of Kenya, a State Corporation under the National Treasury. Further, to eusure
fairness in the allocation of procurement contracts, the National Treasury ensures strict adherence to tlre
provisions of the Public Procurement and Assets Disposal Act and its regulations.

xlix
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1.5 Community Engagements
Towqds Corporate social responsibitity, members of stafffrom the National TrEasury pafticipatcd in this
year Amual Kaptagat Tree planting exercise which was graced by His Excellency the President in I n July,
2023. The two-day exercise saw over 30,000 seedlings planted at Kessup Forest Station by the National
Treasury staff, corporates and members of the community.

To mitigare tectnological hazadq terrorism, fire ad natural disasters, the National Treasury engaged a
professional security services firm oontracted for purposes of enhancing seourity in the Ministry. The
National Treasury continued to improve security within the building and its environs by use of 

-CCTV

cameras installed at the Treasury Building and at the entances and maintained frefighting facilities at the
premises in collaboration with the State Departrnent for public Works.
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9. STATEMENT OF PENSIONS FUND MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITIES

Section 8l of the Public Finance Management Act,2012 and the Asian Officers Family Pension Act Cap.

194(1942) require the Principal Secretary, National Treasury to prepare financial statements in respect of
that Fun4 which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Fund at the end of the financial

yearlperiod and the operating resuls of the Fund for that year/period. The Principal Secretary is also

required to ensure that the Fund keeps proper accounting records r+trich disclose with reasonable accuracy

the financial position ofthe Fund. The Principal Secretary is also responsible for safeguarding the assets

of the Frmd.

The Principal Secretary for the National Treasury is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the

Asian Ofticers family Pension Fund financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of fte Fund for atd as at the end of the firmncial year (period) ended on June 30, 2024. This
rasponsibility includes: (i) maintaining adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that

these continue to be effective throughout the reporting period; (ii) maintaining proper accounting records,

which disclose widr reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the entity; (iii) designing,

implementing and maintaining intenul controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the

financial statementq and ensuring that they are free frorn material misstatements, whether due to error or
fraud; (iv) safeguarding the assets of the Pension's Fund; (v) selecting and appllng appropriate

accounting policies; and (vi) making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Principal Secretary for the National Treasury accept responsibility for the Fund financial statements,

which have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent

judgemenrs and estirnates, in confonnity with lnremational Public Sector Accounting Shndards (Accrual

basis) and in the manner required by the PFM Acq 2012 and the Asian Officers famity Pension Act. Cap.

194 The Principal Secretary is ofthe opinion that the Fund financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of Fund transactions during the financial year ended June 30, 2024, and of the Fund's finurcial
position as at that date. The Principal Secretary firther confirm the completeness ofthe accounting records

maintained for the Fund, which have been relied upon in the prepamtion of the Fund financial statements as

well as the adequacy of the systems of intemal financial control.
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Nothing has come to the attention of the Principal Secretuy, National Treasury to irdicate that the Fund will
not remain a going concem for at least the next twelve months frorn the date of this staternent.

Approval of the financial statements

The Asian officersrfamily Pension Fund financial state&ents were approved by the principal

so."t .y oo 4 l 1O .2024 and signed by.

)
DR. o, cBs KAGIKA, EBS L. AMTIYT,NZU
PRINCIPAL SECRf,TARY SE

OF
TARY/DIR-ECTOR

oNs
ICPAK NO. 6175
SENIOR DEPUTY ACCT. GENENT{L
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL ON ASIAN OFFICERS FAMILY PENSIONS
FUND FOR THE YEAR ENDEO 30 JUNE, 2024_THE NATIONAL TREASURY

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on the Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which
considers compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices,
circulars, guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a
prudent, efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure the
Government achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the
intended purpose.

C. Report on the Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide intemal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, risk
management environment and internal controls, developed and implemented by those
charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the entity.

An Unmodified Opinion is issued when the Auditor-General concludes that the financial
statements are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting
framework. The Report on the Financial Statements should be read together with the
Report on the Lawfulness and Effectiveness in the Use of Public Resources, and
the Report on the Effectiveness of lnternal Conhols, Risk Management and Governance.

The three parts of the report aim to address the Auditor-General's statutory roles and
responsibilities as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the Public Finance
Management Acl,2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of the report when
read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Asian fficers Family Pensions
Fund set out on pages 1 to 22 which comprise of the statement of financial position as at
30 June, 2024, and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net
assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget and actual

Report of the Auditor-Generol on Asian Offcers Family Pension Fund lor the year ended 30 June, 2024 - The
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aamounts for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 ol lhe
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all
the information and explanations which to the best of my knowledge and beliel were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Asian fficers Family Pensions Fund as at 30 June, 2024 and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance lnternational
Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with Asian Officers'
Family Pension Act. Cap 194 and the Public Finance Management Acl, 2012.

Basis for Opinion

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit Institutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Asian Officers Family Pensions Fund
Managemenl in accprdance with ISSAI 130 on the Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

Budgetary Control and Performance

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects final receipts and
expenditure budget on a comparable basis of Kshs.5,998 and Kshs.1,093,196
respectively resulting in a budget shortfall of Kshs.1,087,198. However, the Fund spent
an amount of Kshs.969,432 against the actual receipts of Kshs.5,998 resulting in an over-
utilization of Kshs.963,434 or 16,0630/o of the actual receipts.

ln the circumstances, the budget shortfall and over-utilization are indications of spending
on accumulated surpluses of the Fund and may impact negatively on future sustainability
of the Fund.

My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are lhose matters that, in my professional judgement, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other lnformation
Conclusion

Those charged with governance are responsible for the other information set out on
pages iii to liii, which comprise of The National Treasury lnformation and Management,
Statement of Governance, Statement by the Cabinet Secretary, Statement by the

Report of the Auditor-General on Asian Ofrcers Family Pension Fund for the year ended 30 June, 2024 - The
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Principal Secretary, Statement of Performance against Predetermined Objectives,
Management Discussion and Analysis, Environmental and Sustainability Reporting and
Statement of Pensions Fund Management Responsibilities. The Other lnformation does
not include the financial statements and my audit report thereon.

Basis for Conclusion

ln connection with my audit on the Fund's financial statements, my responsibility is to
read the other information and in doing so, consider whether the other information is

materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. lf based on the work I have performed, I

conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other lnformation, I am required to
report that fact. I have nothing to report in this regard.

REPORT ON THE LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the effect of the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on the
LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm
that nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources
have not been applied laMully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

Fund Operating without a Board of Trustees

Review of records provided revealed that the Fund has been operating over the years
without a Board of Trustees. As a result, the financial accumulated funds have not been
invested. This was contrary to Section 3 (1) of the Asian Officers' Family Pensions Act,
Chapter 194 (Revised 2012) which states that there is hereby established a Board to be
known as the Asian Officers' Family Pensions Board and Section 5 (4) of the same Act
which stipulates moneys belonging to the Fund, so far as practicable, be invested on
behalf of the Fund in such securities or employed at interest in such manner as may be
approved by the Board.

ln the circumstances, non-establishment of Board of Trustees is a breach of the law.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lSSAls 3000 and 4000. The standards
require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
assurance about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in

the financial statements comply in all material respects, with the authorities that govern
them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my conclusion.
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REPORT ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK
MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, lconfirm that nothing has come to my attention to cause me to
believe that internal controls, risk management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with lSSAls 2315 and 2330. The Standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal controls, risk Management and overall governance
were operating effectively in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of the Management and those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Fund's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management
is aware of the intention to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 ot the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
comply with the authorities which govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial
reporting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance
with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes
and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to
governance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
control environment.
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Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

My responsibility is to conduct an audit of the financial statements in accordance with
Article 229(4) of the Constitution, Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and the
lnternational Standards for Supreme Audit lnstitutions (lSSAls). The standards require
that, in conducting the audit, I obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with Section 48
of the Public Audit Act, 2015. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

ln conducting the audit, Article 229(6) of the Constitution also requires that I express a
conclusion on whether or not in all material respects, the activities, financial transactions
and information reflected in the financial statements are in compliance with the authorities
that govern them and that public resources are applied in an effective way. ln addition, I

consider the entity's control environment in order to give an assurance on the
effectiveness of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and
systems in accordance with the provisions of Section 7 (1) (a) of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

Further, I am required to submit the audit report in accordance with Article 229(7) of the
Constitution.

Detailed description of my responsibilities for the audit is located at the Office of the
Auditor-General's website at: httos://www.oagkenva.go.ke/a ud itor-eenera ls-resoonsibilities-
for-audit/. This description forms part of my auditor's report

FCP , cBs
AUDITOR.GENERAL

Nairobi

26 November,2024

Report of the Auditor-General on Asian Oflicers Family Pension Fund for the year ended 30 June, 2021 - The

Nqlionql Treasury

5

I



11. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERTORJI{ANCE FOR TEE YEAR EMED 30

JTJNE 2024

Notes

Rer.euues

Dividend Incorne:

Preference shares

Ordinary shares

Other receipts

Totnl reveuues

Expenses

Paynent ofpensions

Total Expcoses

5

6

2023t2024

IGhs.

5,998

5,998

969,412

969,432

2022t2023

IGhs.

5,998

76,919

82,9L7

I,02r,196

1,02i,t96

2024

NO. 61?5

7

Surplus/(deficlt) for the year (963.434) (938.279)

Thc Accouotiog policies and expla"rtory notes to these financial statemeots an integal part

ofthe financial stateorcnts. The financial statemeots were approved on

and signed by:

I}R. KIPTOO, CBS
PRINCIPAL SECRETARY

U
I
SEI\'IOR DE}UTY ACCT. CET\ERTL

I



Notes 2023t2024 202U2423 2022t2023

Restated

trGhs. Kshs. Kslrs
Cun'ent Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalent 10 450,67'1,333 451,640,767 451,640.767
Receivables

Totol Cut'r'e[t Assets 450,677,333 451,640,767 45t,640,767

Non- Cun'ent Assets

hrvestsnents I 26,604,990 26,604,990 26,604,990

Total Non- Cur.rent Assets

Toral Assets 477,2i2,323 478,245,757 478,245,757

Liabilities
rVlembers cont ibutions t1 3,204,858 3,204,858 37,680,778
Payables

Total Liabilities 3.204.858 3.204.858 37 .961.424
Total net assets 474.477.465 475.040.899 440.564.97 9

Net Assets

Accumulated Surplus t3 351,781,530 352,744.964 318,269,044
Capital Accounr (Ledger) 12 t22,295,935 t22,295,935 r22.295,935
Totrl Net Assets 474,077,465 475,040,899 440,s64,979
Total Net Assets and Liabilities 474.077.465 475.040.899 440.564-979

12. STATEI\{ENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JTINE 2024

The accouoting policies and explanatoly notes to these fuaocial statemeots
of&e financial statements. The financial statements u,ere approved on
and signed by: t1

R KIPTOO, CBS

*-1L\
PR.INCIPAL SECRETARY

rRtr-cl$.kdl-{t'rtrNzu
ICPAI( NO. 6175
SEIqOR DEPUTI' ACCT. GEI\-ERAL

2



13. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED 30 JIJNE

2t21

Notes

As rt I Ju,ly.-2022

SurplusAoss

Adjustrnent during the year

Adjusment during the year

As at 30 June, 2023

Adjustrnent duling the year

As at 30 Juae, 2023 (Restated)

As flt I JuIy, 2023

Surplus/loss

As at 30 June, 2024

122,295,933

122,295,935

122,295,935 352,744,965

- (963,434)

122,295,935 351,781,531

8

9

Capitol
Account

IGhs.

122,295,935

Accumulated
Surplus

IGhs.

344,981,163

(938,279)

( r0,573,840)

(15,200,000)

318,269,0{4

34,475,92t

352,744,965

Total

IGhs.

467,277,A98

(938,279)

(10,573,840)

(1s,200,000)

440,564,979

34,475.921

475,040,900

l3

475,040,900

(963,434)

474,A77,466

Note:

Being prior year profits and fines included as govenunent contributio[s now captue under
accumulated fi.rnds.

The accouating policies alld explauatoly notes to these finaucial staternents au integral part
of the financial statements. The financial statements were approved on
and siped by

.-

ro ,2024

DR. KIPTOO, CBS U
ICPAI( NO. 5175
SENIOR DEPUTY ACCT. GENERAL

J

PRTNCIPAL SECRETARY



14. STATEI'ENT OF CASIIFLOWS FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED 30 JI]NE 2024

Notes

Dividend Incorne

Other Revenues

Accoui s receivable

Total Receipts

Payurent ofPensions

Payable

Sub Total
Divideud receivable

5

6

7

2023t2024

IGhs.

5.998

sB98
(e6eA32)

2022/2423

IGhs.

5,998

76,9t9

{963,434)

82,917

(r,021.196)

(283,646\

(1,22t.92s)

ICBAK NO. 6175
SEN-IOR DEPUTY ACCT. CEI\-ER {L

Net Cash florv from operating activities

Net Cash flow used in investing activities

Net Cash flow used iu financing activities

Adjustmeots during the year

Net increase(decrcase) in cash and cash
equivalent

Cnsh and cosh equlvalent at the
beginaing of the year

Cssh aud cash equivalent ot the end of
the year

(963.4341 fi.22t.925\

451,640,767 452,862,692

450.677,333 45r,640,767

The accountiug policics and explauatory notes to thesc financial statemeuts an integral part
of the frnancial statements. Thc financial statements werr approved on
aud signed by

(o 2024

O, CBS C U
PRINCIP SECRETARY

4



15. STATEMENT OF COI\trARISON OF BTIDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUI\TS FOR

TIIE I'EAR EN]DED 30 JI'NE 2024

Origlnnl
budget

IGhs

Final
budget

IGhs

Actunl on
compatable

bnsis

IGhs

Perfolmance
dilfer ence

IGhs

Vo

utilization
Erplanation
of varionce

Revenue

Dividend

Total
income

5,999 5,999 5,998

5,999 5,999 5,998

Kplc did not
declare

100% Dividend

Sorne

beueficiarics
were

deceased

during dre
8996 year'

L.AMIINJNZU
ICPAK NO. 6175
SEN'IOR DEPUTY ACCT. GEITERAL

Erpenses

Depeldaot
Pension

1,093,196 1,093,196 969,432 123,764

Total
Expeuditure
Surplus
(loss) for
the period

r,093,196 1,093,196 969,432 123,764

(1,087,197) (r,087,197) (963,434)

Note

Thc only expected income is dividend fi'om KPLC and the company declared nil dividend
ordinary shares dtuing the period.

Expendinrrc on the dependaut pcnsion was due to the srwiving individual dependants.

The financial statements were approved on
q tG , 2024 and signed by

DR CERIS KIPTOO, CBS
PRINCIPAL SECRETARY

5



16. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEI\{ENTS

I. GEI{ERAL INFORNIATION

Asian Officers Family Pension Fund is established by and derives its authority and accountability
fi om Asian ofliccr's fanlily Act Cap t 94. Thc cntity is wholly owncd by thc Govcmmcnt of l(cnva
and is donricilcd in Kcnya. Thc cntity's principal activiry is dcpcndant pension.

2. STATENMNT OF CO]IPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

The fitra[cial statetnents have beer:. prepared on a historical cost basis except for the ureasurernent
at re-valued amounts of cel'tain items ofproperty, plant and equiprnent, marketable securities a.nd

fmaacial instruments at fair value, impaired assets at their estimted recoverable auounts alcl
actuarially deterrained liabilities at their present value. The preparaiion offinancial statemerts in
conformity rvith Intemational Public Sector Accountiug Standards (IPSAS) atlorvs the use of
estimates and assumptions. It also reqrtires managemellt to exercise judgernent in the process of
applyrng tl\e e tit_t"s accountiag policies. The aleas involving a l gher degree ofjudgement or
complexity, or where assuEptions and estimates are significant to the filalrcial statements, are
disclosed in Note 4.

The financia[ statements have lreen prepared and presented in Kenya Shitlings, rvhich is the
fi.rnctional and repofting cl.u'eucy of the Asian Officers Fallily Pension Fund.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Acr and Intemational
Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The accountiug policies adopted have been
consistently applied to all the yeal's presented.

3. SU]f\,IARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOfINTING POLICIES
a) Rer.enue recognition

i) Relenue frorn uon-erchnnge tl'tnsirctions

Fees, taxes aod fines

The entity recognizes revenues from fees, taxes and fines lvhen the event occurs and the
asset recognition critcria are rnet. To the extent that there is a related condition attached
that rvould give rise to a liability to repay the arnount. defemed income is recognized

instead ofreveuue. Other non-exchange revenues are lecognized when it is probable that
the firture economic beuefits or sewice potential associated with the gsset will flou, to
the entity and the fair value ofthe asset can be measured reliably. r .

6
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF STGMFTCANT ACCOUNTTNG POLTCTES (CONTIryr.rED)

Transfers from other government entities

Revenues fiom non-exchange transactions with other governrnent entities ar€ mqrsured
at fair value and r ecognizel on obtaining control of the asset (cash, goods, servic€s and
property) if the gansfer is fiee fiom conditions and it is probable that ttre economic
benefits or sewice potential related to the asset will flow to the entity and can be measured
reliably. Recurrent grants are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.
Development/capital grants ate recoguzed in the statement of financial position and
realiscd in the statement of comprehensive income over the usefirl life of the assefs that
has beea acquired using such firnds

ii) Revenue from erchange transections

Rendering of semices

The entity recognizes revenue from rendering of services by refcrence to the stage of
completion when the outcome ofthe tansaclion caa be estimated reliably. The stage of
completion is measured by reference to labour hours incurred to date as s p€rcentage of
total csfimated laboru honrs.

Where the contact outcome cannot b€ measured reliably, revenue is recognized only to
the extent that the expenses incurred are recoverable.

Sale ofgoods

Rcvenue from the sale ofgoods is recognized when the signilicant risks and rewards ofownership
have becn hansferred to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods and when the amount of
revenuc can be measured reliably and it is probable that the economic benefits or service potetrtial
associ*ed wirh the transaaion will flow to the entity.

fnterest income

Interest itrcome is accrued using the effective yield method rhe elfective leld discouns
estim,aed firture cash receipts through the expected life ofthe flancial asset to that asset's net
carrying amount. Thc mcthod applics this lctd to thc principal outstanding to dctsrminc htcrcst
income each period.

Dividends

Dividends or similar distributions must be recognized when the shareholder's or the entity's right
to receive pafments is established.

Rental income

Rental income arising frorn operating leases on inveshnent properties is accounted for on a
straight-tinc basis over thc lease tenns and includcd in revenue.

7
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTIIIUf,D)

SLTMMARY OF STGNTETCANT ACCOUNTTNC POLTCTES (CONTTNUED)

Budget information

The budget for FY 2023-2024 was approved by the Permanent Secretary during the yea.r.

Current income txx

current income tax assets urd liabilities for the qrrrent period are measured at the arnount
exp€cted to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used
to compute tre amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in
the area where the Entity operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in net assets is recognized ilr net assets
and not in the statement of financiat perfonnance. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax retums with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject
to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

c) Taxes (Continued)

Defened tax

Defcrrcd tax is provided using the liability method on ternporary dilferences between thc tax bases
ofsssets and liabilities and their carrying anrounts for financia.l reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except in respect of
taxable temporary differences associated with investsnents in conuolled entities, associates and
interests itr joint venhrres, when the timing ofthe reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the ternporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
fthrre-

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differeaceg and the carry forward of unused tax qedits and unused ta( losses can be utilized,
exccpt in rsP€ct of dcductible tefiporuy differences associated with investments in controlled
entities, associates and interests in joint ventures, defened tax assets are recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable fuhre and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carying amount of deferred tax ass€ts is reviewed at each reporting date and redrced to the
extcnt that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit wiII be available to allow all or
part ofthe defened ax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at
each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that firture taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

8
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEME,NTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGMFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTITIUED)

Defened tax assets and liabilities are measrued at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realized or the liabilityis settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Defcrrcd tax relating to items recognized outside surplus or deficit is recognized outside surplus
or deficit. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction in net
assets-

Deferred tax assets and defered tax liabilities are oflset ifa legally enforc€able right exists to set
offcurrent tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Sales tax

Expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount ofsales tax, except:

F When the sates tax incurred oo a puchase of assets or services is not recoverable ftom the
taxation authority, in which case, the sales tax is recognized as part ofthe oost ofacquisition
ofthe asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

) When receivables and payables are stated qrith the amount of sales tax inctuded

The net anount ofsales tax r@overable fronr, or payable to, tho taxation authority is included
8s part ofreceivables or payables in the statement offinancial position.

d) Investment property
Inveshent properties are measured initially at cost, including fansaction costs. The carrying
amotmt includes the replac€ment cost of components ofan existing investment property at the
time tha cost is incrrrred if the recognition criteria are met and excludes the costs of day+o-day
maintenance of an investment property.

lnYesbnent property acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at its fair value at the
date ofacquisition. Subsequent to initial recognition, investrnent properties are measured using the
cost model and are depreciated over a 30-year period.

lnvestmcnt properties are derecognized either u,hen they have been disposed of or when the
invesEn€nt Property is permanently with&awn from use and no future economic benefit or service
potential is expected from its disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amouut ofthe asset is recognized in the surplus or deficit in the period ofde-recognition.

Trmsfers are made to or from invesinent property only when there is a change in use.

9
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NOTES TO THE FTNANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTTNUED)

STJMMARY OF SIGMFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTII\IUED)

e) Property, plant and equipment
All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition ofthe items. When
significart parts ofproperty, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, thc entity
recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly. Likewise, when amajor inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying
amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All
other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in surplus or deficit as incurred. Where an asset
is acquired in a non-cxchange transaction for nil or nominal consideration the asset is initially
measued at its fair value-

f; Leases

Finance leases are leases that bansGr substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to
owncrship ofthe leased item to the Entity. Assets held under a finance lease are capitalized at the
commenc€ment ofthe lease at fte fsir value ofthe leased property or, if lower, at the present value
ofthe future minimum lease payments. The Entity also recognizes the associated lease liability at
the inception of the lease. The liability recognized is measured as the present value ofthe futr:re
minimum lease payments at initlal recognition.

Subsequent to initial recognition, lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and
reduction ofthe lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate ofinterest on the remaining balance
offie liability. Finance charges are recogaized as finance costs in surplus or deficit.

An asset held under a finance lease is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if
there is no reasonable certainty that the Entity will obtain ownership of the asset by the end ofthe
lease tenq ths asset is depreciated over thc shorter ofthe estimated useful life ofthe assct and the
lease term-

Operating leases are leases that do not haasfer substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased item to the Entity. Operating lease payments are rec,ognized as an
operating expense in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

g) Itrt trgible $sets
Intangible assets acguired sepaately ue initially recognized at cost. The cost ofintangible assets
acquired in a non-exchange tsansection is their fair value at the date of the exchange. Following
initial recognition, intangible assets a(e carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and
accurudated impairment losses. Intemally generaled intangible assets excluding capitalized
dsvelopment costs, aro not capitalized and expenditue is reflected in surphu or deficit in the
period in wldch the expcnditurc is incurred.

The usefirl life ofthe intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite.

10
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGIVNCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINI.IED)

h) Research and development costs

The Entity expens€s resealch costs as incurred. Development costs on an individual project are
rcc.strized as intangible assets when the Entity can dernonstrate:

! The tcchnical feasibility ofcompleting the ass€t so that the asset will be available for use or
sale

! Its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset

D How the assgt will generate future oconomic benefits or service potefltial

P The availability ofresources to complete the ass€t

The ability to measure reliably th€ expenditure during development.

Following initial recognition of an asse! the asset is carried at cost less any accunulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset begins when
develop,rnent is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortized over the period of
expected future benefit. During rhe period of development, the asset is tested for impairment
annually with any impairment losses recognized immediately in surplus or deficit.

i) Financial instruments

a) Fhaneiol ass6

Initial rccogn ltion and measuranent

Financial assets within the scope of IPSAS 29 Financial Instrumcnts: Recognition and
Measur@erlt are classified as financial assets at fair value thro"gh surplus or deficit, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments or available-for-sale finurcial assets, as approp,riate.
The Entity determines the classification ofits financial assets at initial r€cognition.

Loans and recelvables

laans ard receivables are nonderivalive financial assets with fixed or detenninable payments
that are not quoted in an active ma*et. After initial measurement, such finnnqif ass€ts are
subscqucntly mcasurcd at arnortizcd cost using thc cllcctive intercst mctho4 lcss impairmcnt.
Amortized cost is cslculated by taking into account any discount or prernium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part ofthe eflective interest rate. l.osses arising from impairment
are recognized in the surplus or deficit.

11
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGMFICANT ACCOIJNTING POLICIES (CONTINIJED)

Held-to-maturl0)

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or detenninable payments and fixed maturitics are
classified as held to mahrity when the Ertity has the positive intention and ability to hold it to
maturity. After initial measurement, held+o-maturity investnents are measured at a6ortized cosr
using the effective interest method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and Ges or costs that are an integral part ofthe
effective interest rate. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in surplus or deficit.

I mpairmen t of Jin a ncial assets

The Entity asscsses at each reporting date whcther there is objcctive evidence that a financial asset
ol an entity offinancial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a entity offinancial assets is deemed
to be impaired i{ and only i{ there is objective evidence of impairment as a result ofone or more
events thal has occurred after the initial recognition ofthe asset (an incurred 'loss e!,ent') ed &at
loss cvent has an impact on the estimated firture cash flows of the financial asset or the entity of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include the following
indicators:

i) Finencial instruments

F The dcbtors or entity ofdebtors arc cxpcriencing sigrificant financiat difficulty

) Default or delinquency in interest or principal payments

) The probability that debtors will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization

F obseruable dqtq indicales a measurable decrease in estimated future cash flows (e.g. changes
in rrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults)

b) Fin an c ial I iab ilities

Initial recogn ition and measuremenl

Financial liabilities within the scope ofIPSAS 29 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value
through srrplus or dcficit or loans md bonowings, as appropriate. The Entity detcrmines the
classification ofits financial liabilities at initial recognition. AII frnancial liabilities are recognized
initially at fair value and, in the case ofloans and borrowings, plus directly attribut ble hansaction
costs.

Inaas and horrowing

Aftcr initial recogrition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measurcd at
smortized cost using the ellective interest method Gains and losses are recogrrized in srrplus or
deficit when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effective interest method
arnortizdion proc€ss.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisitioa and
fees or costs that are an integral part ofttre effective interest rate.

l2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF STGMFICANT ACCOT NTING POLICIES (CONTINIIED)

j) Inventories

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was received
through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost of the inventory is
is fair valuc at the date ofacquisition.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted for,
as follows:

) Raw marerials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method

F Finished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufachrring overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing
costs.

i) Inventories(Continued)

After initial recogrition, inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
However, to the extent that a class of inventory is disnibuted or deployed at no charge or for a
nomin&l charge, that class ofinventory is measured at the lower of cost a[d curent replacement
cost.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necesssry to make the sale, exchange, or
distribution.

Inventories are recognized as an expense when deployed for utilization or consumption in the
ordinary course ofoperations of the Entity.

k) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result ofa past even! it is probable that a:r outflow ofresources embodying econornic benefc or
service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amormt of the obligation.

Where the Entity expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for examplc, under an
insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only when the
reimbursernent is virtually certain.

The expcnse relating to any provision is presented in the statement of financial performance net
ofany reimbursement.

l3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

STIMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINIJED)

l) Co rrt inge n t liab ilit ies

The Entity does not recognize a contingent liability, but discloses details ofany contingencies in
the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility ofan outflow ofresources embodying
econr*niq bengfits or serv.ice potential is remote.

m) Contingent assets

Thc Entity does not recognize a contingent asset, but discloses details ofa possible assct whose
existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence ofone or more uncertain future events
not wiolly within the control of the Entity in the notes to the financial statements. Q6ltiogent
assets are assessed mntinually to ensure that developments are approp,riately reflected in the
financial statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits or
service potential will adse and the asset's value can be measured reliably, the asset and the related
rcvente xe rcagdznd, in the financial stalements of the period in which the cbange occurs.

n) Nefure ard purpose of reservcs

The Entity creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements.

o) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The Entity recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively. The effects of
changes in accormting poliry are applied prospectively ifre*rospective application is impractical.

p) Employec benefits

Rairemcnt benefit plans

The Entity provides retirement benefits for its employees and directors. Defined contribution plans
ae post-c(ryloymcnt benefit plans rmder which an entity pays fixed contributions into a scparate
entity (a firnd), and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions ifthe
fimd docs not hold suflicient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in
the current and prior periods. The contributions to fiurd obligations for the paymetrt ofretirement
benefits are chaged against income in the year in which they become payable.

Defined benofit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined-contribution plans.
The defined benefit funds are actuarially valued tri-annually on thc projected unit credit method
basis. Deficits identified are recovered through lump sum payments or increased future

contributions on proportional basis to all prticipating ernployers. The contributions and lurnp
sum payments reduce the post-employme$t b€nefit obligation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF STGNTTICANT ACCOUNTTNG POLTCTES (CONTTNUED)

q) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreigr currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange on the
date of the transactiol. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency are reported at
the statoment of financial position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on that date.
Exchange differences arising fiom the settleme-nt of creditors, or fiom the reporting of creditors
at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the period, are recognized
as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.

r) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs arc capitalized against qualirying asscts as part ofpropcrty, plant and cquipment.

Such borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the asset is being acquired or
consEucted and borrowings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases when construction of the
asset is complete- Further borrowing costs are charged to the statement offinancial performance.

s) Related parties

The Entity regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert control
individually orjointly, or to exercise significant influence over the Entity, or vice versa- Members
ofkey managernent are regarded as related parties and comprise the dtectors, the CEO and senior
m:magcrs.

t) Scrvice conce$ion arrangemenas

The notity analyses all aspects of seryice concession arangements that it etrters into in
determining the appropriate accounting treat[rent and disclosure requirernents. ]n particular,
wherc a private party contributes an asset lo tllc arrangement, the Entity recognizes that asset
when, and only when, it controls or regulates the services the operator must provide together with
the asset, to whom it must provide them, and at what price. In the case ofassets other than ,whole-

of-life' assets" it controls, through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise - any significant
residual interest in the asset at the end ofthe arrangernent. Any assets so recognized are measured
at their fair value. To the extent that an asset has been recognized the Entity also recognizes a
corresponding liability, adjusted by a cash consideration paid or received.

u) Cash and cash cquivalents

cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash ar banlq short-term deposits on call
and highly liquid inveshnents with an original manrrity ofthree months or less, which are read.ily
convertible to known amounts ofcash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
Bank accourd balances include amounts held at the Cenhal Bank of Kenya and at vfiious
commcrciat ba:rks at dre end ofthe finurcial year. For the purposes of these financial statements,
cash and cash equivalents also include short term cash impress and advances to authorised public
officers md/or institutions which were not surrendered or accounted forat the end ofthe financial
ye8r.

l5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

sllMMARy OF Stcl[FrcANT ACCOT NTTNG POLTCTES (CONTrh{r]ED)

v) Comparative figures

where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amcndcd or
recon-figuEd to confonn to the required changes in presentation.

w) Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact on the
financial statements for the year ended June 30,2023.

4. SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENT AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION TJNCERTAIMTY

The preparation of the Entity's financial statements in conformity wittr IpsAS requires
matragement to make judgments, estimates and assurnptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure ofcontingent liabilities, at the end of
the reporting period. However, unc€rtainty about these assumptiorc and estimates could resutt in
outcomes ttat requirc a material adjustrnent to $e carrying amount ofthe asset or liability affected
in firture periods. State all judgements, estimates 8nd assumptions made: e.g

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concemhg the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
r4orting date, that have a significant risk of causi.og a material adjustment to the carying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Entity based its
aszumptions end estimates on parameters available when lhe consoli&ted financial staternents
were prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about fuhre developments may
change due to market changes or circunstances arising beyond the control of the Entity. such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur, IPSAS 1.140

Uschrl livcs and rcaidual valucs

The useful lives and residual values ofassets are assessed using the following indicarors to inform
potential future use and value fiom disposal:

D The condition of the asset based on the assessment of experts ernployed by the Entity
F The nahre ofthe asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and

processes

F The nature ofthe processes in which the asset is deployed
F Availability offi.rnding to replace the asset

F Changes in the market in relation to the assst.

l6
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NOTES TO TIIf,, EINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

5. DIVIDENDINCOME

Revenues 2023n024

Kshs.

Irwcstsncat in Sharcs

20?3.n024

Krhs.

26,604,9X

AdFsErcnt on overstatcment of
Shares

Totrl 26,604,990

Dividend

Preference shares 5,998 5,998

Ordinary shares

Total 5,99E 5,99S

The dividcnd income rclates to dividend on the KPLC ordinary sharcs, prefcrenccs shares 4oZ and

KPLC cumulative proference shares at 7oZ.

6! OTHER R.E,CEIPTS

Thcse Ee payroll retums from deccased beneficiaies.

7. PAYMENT OF PENSIONS

Erpenses 2OBn024 20?,2n023

Kshs. Kshs.

Goverrnnant pcnsions &
rctirernent Bencfits

969,432 1,021, r96

E. INVESTMENTS

2022t2023

Kshs.

2022nO23

K!hs.

37,178,830

10,573,840

26,604,990
l

I

Inv&eot relatcs to shues held with KPIf ad they are valued at cost.

Ordinary Shares 10,583,460 @ Ksh.2.50,

47o Prefcrcncc Sh.rcs 7,O77 @Kshs.2O and 7olo Prefcrence Shares 240 @ IGhs. 20.

Adjusbcnt being error on valuation ofinvestnent.
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NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATETmNTS (CONTINUED)

9.RECEIVABLE

2023t2024 /023t2024 2022t2023

Kshs. Kshs.

Adjustrnent after
wlite off
Authority

Cash owed by Cereals & 15,200,000
Sugar Finance Corp. (CSFC)

Total 15,200,000

Investoent in CSFC of Kshs. 15,200,000 was written off vide MOF/AC/305C VOL.2
(242) ofAugust 28, 2023. (Anncx 5). An adjustment ro that effect has been made.

rO. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

CENTRAL BANK OFI(ENYA: A/C N'O. 1000213752

2023t2024 2022t2023

Kshs. Kshs.

Cash (PMG) Amex I 450,677,333 451,640,767

11. GOIIERNIUENT (I.mIIBERS) CONTRIBUTTON

2023t2024 202212023 2022t2023

Restated

Kshs IGhs IGhs

Personal contribution E.A.C 1,449,677 1,449,677 1.449.677

Personal contribution E.A.C 530,6I0 530,6r 0 s30.610

Personal contribution E.A.C Customs 5,006 5,006 5.006

Govemrnent Contribution 1,219,565 1,219,565 1.2r9,565

Fines I,082,904

Profits 33.393.016

Total 3,204,8s8 3,204,858 37,680,778

NB: Fines and Profits transfened to accumulated funds Note l3 to the financial statements

hcluded in the figure reported was Ksbs 33,393,016.00 being profi/loss on realization of
hvestmenr and Kshs 1,082,904.00 being fines, adding up to 34,475,g20.00 thar has now been
trarsferred to surplus account.

t9



NOTES TO Tm, FINANCIAL STATEImNTS (CONTINT ED)

12. CAPITAL ACCOT'NT

2023t2024

Kshs.

Initial mernbcr contribution to the
pcnsion fund

2022t2023

Kshs.

122,295,935 t22,295,935

13. ACCTJMUI,AIED STJRPLUS

Surplus b/f

Adjustmcnt

Adjusnnent

Adjustmcnt

Profit(loss)

Net

Note 2023t2024

Kshs.

318,269,044

34,475,920

(963,434\

351,78r,530

2022t2023

IGhs.

344,98t.163

( 10,573,840)

(15,200,000)

(938,279)

318,269,0U

E

9

1t
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NOTf,S TO THE ANANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

14. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(i) CrcditRisk

The carrying @ouo.t of financial assets rccorded in the finrncisl stalcments
rEpres€nting dle cntity's maximum e"xposure to cr€dit risk without uking account
of thc value ofany collatorsl obtained is mado up as follows:

The customcrs under the firlly pcrforming catcgory are paying their debts as thcy
continuc trsding. The entity has sigritrcant conccotatiotr of 6cdit risk on &mounts
dueAmCSCF. r.

'Ihe rnrnrg€ment sets the firnd's credit policies 
"aa 

-6h#qif$ and lays down
parsmeters wiftin which the various aspects ofcredit risk managedcnt dre opcrated.

16. RELATED PATY BAIII,NCES

Nattre of rclded prty rclation$ips

Thcrc wcrc no rclacd prtics involved in this art'ty.

17. CONTINGET{T ASSETS AND CONTIGENT LIABILITIES

a Thc entity did trot have any conting€nt liabilities

Receivables from
exchange transactions

None

Bark balmces 450-677-333 4s0-677-333 None

4s0.677333Total 4s0.67733s None

At 30 Jrme 2023

Receivablcs frorr
cxchangc tronsactions

None

Bank balances 4st.&0.767 451.9O.767 None

Total 451.640.767 45t.&0.767 Noue

1" r,, ,1.,,1

ir r ir. :r .ir.

\ 11, lir,r- rilr'l

l,rril i ,rli,,
r:rrl;,. I rll,t:{
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17. ANNEXES

Annex 1

PROGRESS ON FOLOW UP OFAI,JDITOR RECOMMENDATIONS

Thc following is the summary of issues raised by the o<tenral auditor, and management corrme[ts
that wcre provided to the auditor. We have nominated focal persons to resolve the various issues
as shown bclow with the associatcd time fiame within which we expect the issues to be resolved.

Thc financial stalernents wcre approved on
q't\.

2024 and signed by

oo, cBs c ZA
PRTN SECRETARY I NO.6175

SE{IOR DEPUTY ACCT. GENERAL

f,afcraE
.llo. o! th.
attcrrd
rudit
Rrpon

Irtu. / O[c.rvrtlo!,
frcrD Audltor Mrnrgclrana coDrrcBtr

Focd Polnt pcrroD to
rrrolv. tt. lrru. (7varn

and daigrrdiorr)

Stetc:

(R.tolEd / Not
RcsolvcQ

TlD.
Pnac

(hnd ddt
uLa, tou
.ted lh.
iran.to k
,6M

I
Inaccrrracics iu thc
Financial
Statcmcnts

Balanced Trial balarce aod
Icdgcr havc been provided
for Ardit revicw.

Micball A. Kaaika EBS

&qetary/Dkpclor
Pensions

Resolved

2
ldlc F(lods Hcld iD
Bank

Conrnunication to CBK
Sorn thc fiods in accouat
has bc€n prcvided for Audit
rcvicw.

Miclacl A. Kagika, EBS

Sccretary/Director
Pensions

CBK
corimrmicatioo
att&hcd
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Anner 2: Trid Balance

Sub flcrd: 1{67 -Oml

Crcdits
Capital Incomc
Pcrsonal Contributions
Personal Coutibtrtiqrs
Pcrsonal Contributions
Goveromcnt Contributions
Accudetod srplus
Dividcodlncoe
Totrl

Debit
Pensios Pa5rueot (Excluding Peosions Incrcase)
Invcgmab
Balucc Cd at bank
Totel

20Bno24
K!hs.

122,29s,93s

1,449,617

530,610

5,006

1,219,56s

352,744,W
5J98

4&251.755

969,432

26,604,990
430,677,333

47E,251,755
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Anner 3: Bank Reconclliati on

rD.trd i{lJrrIl,: .llil.l

DETAI(s KSHS rsHs

450,793,58{6s

1m,615

54.264

45O,57r3nL 65

REPUBLIC OF KENYA

F.O. tO

SAiIK fiE@T{OUATION STATEMETIT AS AT 30 JU E, 2024

BAIIX 3AI.AI{G A5 PER CERTIFICATE

Le.s 1&2

I PAlaftl{rs N cAg{ BooK NoT tN BAN|(

(uflPRtgt{tEo c,tEQUEs)

TOIAL UNOEARED EFFECTS

2 RECEIPTS IN BANX NOT IN CASH BOOK

TOTALAPEIIDEX 7 8,2
3 PAYMEIr tN BANK Nor tN cAsH Boot(

4 RECTIPTS IN CASH SOOKNOT IN BANK

,70:TALIPENT,EX 
' 

& 2
AAIAIICE AS PER IHE CASH 8Oq(

PENSIONS DEPARTMENT

ASIAN OFFTCiIRS A,/C NO. 1000213752

.DFIAILS OF Nft AEOW AffACflED"

'l CEitlFv T}|AT I h.v. r.r .d tlr b.r* bi.n.. h ri...rt foo* rhfi rt.
trlltrEtanGrt rnd that the rtove Recoltdllttbn k cornct.,

)
Slgndture.-..

IEF ArcOUMANf
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Anncx 4: Ccrtificate of Bahnccs

a
,,.., a'aft

.' ,,\.. ',
a:--rl a ---9

trl! lrl lO,.'4

CERTIFICATE OF BATANCES

Ilijt i.i'.;Ll.i
^ta40 

:.4t i:.,i r L!r:;t,ra.r
'i'.j:I..\ .,... .- :.r.1(tr

01 A16 trlt

rr.t i !,^'i -.r-, rH!{gJRY
p.0. !o. jl,i,.i riAtiiCgt.

1.69Lt59.Ori.27
!,ta.5rl.a,

150.792,&1.65
xF 1fr9.5]E.,717.90 |

o@
o6

Data.

12(t37r

\O ).n 2.

THE NA] X]NAT -I RTAJI.)RY

! A.lour.t No I Acd,rt N!,!t
r@0204397 elc{'EN5IONi

' :0@213744 EUROPTAN_,\!4DO\i5 Ar\.D Ona lA\J PENJ|ON KT'
KE'10@213752 , ASIAN OFiKr2t r ritltY Pf,VflON fU].lD
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8 NATI tlVg.lUE Col.!-

lfl'.Jat2o4.r ?usrr iEllrE!!.nmtNNtr^TtoN LHFM
TEJ

t(Fl

Cu

t.lty otld,
&rtdlr.d tbn to.y
E n;d!t !.ftJcrr Jhrdon

Ht*"o
.lo1oN.i.hr
Adrtir.d tln lo.y
S.rLhS r-vicrr Dt riTr

IthL^- fi ,a) u _&.,.-(u,-
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-s',+.. 1
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Annex 5

PBINCBTT SBCRETARY
.T 

HE TIATIONAL IREASUEY

zbc rt ruc mal

RECEIVED
P 0. Bot $rro7 - H lO. Xm(B

REPUBLIC OF I(ENYA
TTIE NAIIONAL TREASURY & ECONOHIC PLANNING

I .{f,+:* Ar.Ji^. D9: I

ttIX('t j.rt,

l*bd t !trr. fbj.al*
Rd! raorrrclrosc vot-2(ta4

Dr. 6.ir lopt o, Cts
Aa*pr sgtrrrry
tlrlonatT.an5uy
P. O 8(lr 

'0c07 
.00]00

l{AIROAT

Qs- r'si,

t,lLl,rr(,:l.tt TBtrtl .rL$
ul

O.lc: 28n

b6(ff fr \c"

F'vLqloDor

REQU€sT fOR AUTSORIIY rO
t(sHS.rt,200,000.00

WRITE OFF LOSS AI4OUffi G TO

tre tdrf b f'3tnct ilcEtirg-2o!1 lcd O.! 25:.Rirua|.i, 2O2t ttlt lpfo\red tt *i,ld.B up
o, oo.m.rt furds rU th. nccd o.titd Erbjl|q Acs ia:actrcd lrcrcll! flc OdrE !!io!{t
tl|c t60dc, Llp o: )ord.rt FJts TrC( td(c rcstrrrirrrtr: bJ erie.Cf trc trrh
In€ltnar:s d r*r. f t2lrO,@O-oO tly ll. ! *!tu Ofic.E fril y Fcrlix SdfrnE fud rtg
tft., dd6{f Cqs* ftl Sogs, Fn.(€ c!.r6*b..

,y:,;|iw
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lrrlE off.
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